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Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, PA.

A Professional Associcadion of Certified Public Acootrbiatti s ciief Menrcgement Conpserftants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

~ To the Honorable Mayor and

Members of the Board of Commissioners
Town of Nags Head

MNags Head, North Carplina

We have audited the accompanying lnancial slalements of the governmenta! activitics, business-type
activities, cach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Nags Head,
North Carolina as of and for the year ended June 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic
[tnancial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Town of Nags Head, North Carolina's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these basic financial statements based on our andit.

We conducted our audit in aceordanee with anditing standards generally accepied in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issned by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obfain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial stalements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provide a reascnable basis for our opinien.

In our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
regpecls, the financial position of the governmental activities, the busincss-type activities, the general
fund, each major fund, and the aggregaic remaining fund information of the Town of Nags Head, North
Carolina as of June 30, 2006, the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
appropriate, thereof, and the respective budgelary comparison for the general fund and Capital Reserve
Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis is nol a required parl of the basic financiai statements but is
supplementary information reguired by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inguiries of manapement regarding the methods
of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit
the informaticn and express ne opinion thereon.

a0 Tath Avente Drive 81 Hickory, North Caroling 28602 = Phone 828-327-2727 » Fax 8283282324
13 South Center Strect = Tvlorville, North Cavoling 28681 » Phonc 828.032.9025 « lax 8246329085
Tobl Pree Both Locations BIR-Y48-0585 * Wb site: wwanmaninstarnes. com



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 186,
2006 on our consideration of the Town of Nags Head's internal control over financial reporting and our
tests of its compliance with ccriain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. That report is an
integral part of an audit prepared in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read
in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Our audit was performed for the purpese of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of the
Town of Nags Head, North Carolina taken a5 a whole. The individual fund financial statements and
schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and arc not a reguired part of the basic
financial statements. The individual fund financial statements and schedules have been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, arc fairly
stated, in al! material respects, in relation to the basie financial statements taken as a whole..

- » .
Dot Hanssd £ é:wahﬁ-* &ras, ¥a.
Martin Stames & Associates, CPAs, PLA.

August 16, 2006




Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Management Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Town of Mags Head, we offer readers of our financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town of Nags Head for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2006. The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section is designed to assist the reader in
focusing on significant financial issues, provide an overview of the Town's financial activity, identify
changes in the Town's financial condition, identify material deviations from the financial budget, and
identify individual fund issues or concerns.

FINANCTAL HIGHLIGHTS

The assets of the Town of Nags Head exceeded its liahilitias at the close of the fiscal year by $31,789,159
{net assets).

The Town's net assets increased by $2,211,646 aver the prior year. The governmental net assets
increased by $1,860,871 (+9.72%). The business-type net assets increased by $350,775 (+3.37%).

At the end of the current fiscal year, the total unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was
$7,069,915 which was up by $3,639,577 (+106.1%) from the prior year. This unreserved fund balance
represents 53.44% of total general fund expenditures for the fiscal year. The increase is due primarily to
the costs incurred for the emergency berm and other storm repair costs that were reimbursed by FEMA
during the fiscal year in the amount of $2,171,809,

The Town of Nags Head's total debt decreased by $694,637 (-9.70%) during the current fiscat year.

The General Fund budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 was adopted with a tax rate of $.1475
per $100 assessed valuation down from .373 in the pricr year due to significant increases In assessed
valuations from Full revaluation effective with the January 2005 valuations. Total assessed valuation
increased from $1,009,875,661 as of June 30, 2005 to $2,970,577,582 as of June 30, 2006 an increase of
£1,961,101,921 (+194.19). '

General Fund budget amendments during FY 2000 totaled just over $2.3 million with individual increases
{decreases) by functional area noted below:

»  General Government increased by $31,972 for beach nourishment costs and Harvey property
improvements partially offset by the allocation of merit pay, career development and reimbursements
from the Water Fund for administrative oversight.

* Public Safety increased by $442,060 to fund capital purchases budgeted at the first year debt
payment amount, added funding far equipping the new fire/palice facility, higher than normal
maintenance/repair of vehicles in the Fire department, additional salaries in Ocean Rescue for
providing ocean rescue services to the National Park Service, and additional funding for fire volunteer
incentive pay for the final year of the old funding palicy.

= Environmental Protection increased by $425,925 due to capital purchases budgeted at the first year
debt payment amount,

= Public Works increased by $1,514,130 to fund capital purchases budgeted at thea first year debt
payment amount and grant and Town funding of access improvements at Barnes and Albatross
streets.




Key Ratios

% Debt to General Governmental Expenses ~ 55.00%
% Property Tax Collection 95.97%
% Increase in Assessed Property Valuation 154.19%

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Nags Head's basic
financial statements. The financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views
of the Town: 1) Government-Wide Financial Statements and 2) Fund Financial Statements. Both
perspectives, however, are essential and complementary components that aliow the user to address
relevant guestions, broaden a basis for comparison, and enhance the Town’s accountability. Another
element of the basic financial statements is the notes to the financial statements. In addition to the basic
financial statements, this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance the reader's
understanding of the financial condition of the Town of Nags Head. (See Figure 1)

Figure 1 — Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Management’s Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements
Government-wide Fund MNotes to the
Financial Statements Financial Staternents Financial Statements

A, Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide statement report both short-term and long-term Information about the financial
condition of the Town as & whole, focusing on the government’s operational accountability, The
accounting methods of these statements reflect that of private sector companies in that all governmental
and business-type activities are consolidated into celumns that add to a total for the primary government.
The statement of net assets reports the Town's net assets and includes all, both current and nan-current,
assets and liabilities of the government. The difference between the two is reported as net assets, Over
time, increases or decreases In the Town's net assets are one indication of whether its financial health is
impraving or deteriorating. You will also need to consider other non-financial factors, such as changes in
the Town’s property tax base, local economy and service levels, to assess the overall health of the Town.
On the other hand, the statement of aclivities reports how net assets have changed and includes all of the
current year's revenues and expenses regardiess of when cash is received or paid.
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The governmant-wide financial statements of the Town are divided into two categories:

Governmental Activities — Most of the Town's basic services are included here, such as police, firg,
environmental services, public works and general administration. Taxes and grants finance most of
these activities, '

Business-Type Activitias — the Town charges fees to customers to cover the costs of certain

services it provides. The Town's water system is included. Also included here is the Town's one
blended component unit — Nags Head Leasing. Although legally separate, "component units” are
important because of certain financial transactions that exist between the entities and the Town.

B. Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide mare detailed information about the Town's major funds while
focusing on the fiscal accountability. Funds are accounting devices that the Town uses to keep track of
specific sources of funding, such as those required by state law, and spending for particular purposes. The
Board of Commissioners establishes several funds to assure control as well as good management and to
exhibit proper usage of certain taxes and grants. The Town of Nags Head, like all other governmental
entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance {or non-compliance) with
finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes.

The Town has three types of funds:

Governmental Funds — Most of the Town's basic services are included in governmental funds, which
focus on 1) how cash and other financial assets can readily be converted to cash flow in and out
{that is, their liquidity} and 2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending, This is
the manner in which the financial budget Is typically developed. Because this information provides
a short-term view that helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that
can be spent in the near future to finance the Town's programs, as opposed to the government-
wide statements which provides both a short and a long term focus, a recondiliation is provided on
the page following the fund statements that explains the relationship or differences between the
twio views. :

Proprietary Funds —~ Services for which the Town charges customers. a fee are generally reported in
proprietary funds, Accounted for like the government-wide statements, proprietary funds provide
both long and short-term financial information and in addition include the statement of cash flows.
A reconciliation statement is once more provided following these funds to explain the difference
betwesn them.

Fiduciary Funds — The Tawn is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its Police Special Separation Allowance
Pension Trust. The Town is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in this fund are used
only for their intended purposes. The Town’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate
statement of fiduclary net assets and a statement of changes In fiduciary net assets. We exclude
these actlvities from the government-wide financial statements because the town cannot use these
assets to finance its operations.

C. Notes to the Financial Statements

The nates provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements.




D. Reguired Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain .
required supplementary information concerning the Town of Nags Head’s progress in funding its obligation
to provide pension benefits to certain of its employees.

E. Other Supplementary Information

Other supplementary information includes combining statements for selected funds showing additional
detail for revenues and expenditures.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FNANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a gavernment’s financial position, In the case of
the Town of Nags Head, assets exceeded liabilities by $31,789,159 at the close of the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006. A large portion of the Town of Nags Head's net assets $16,403,979 represents its
investment in capital assets (e.g. land, building, machinery and equipment}, less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding plus any lean proceeds not yet expended at the end of the
fiscal year. The resources to repay the debt must be provided from sources other than capital assets,
since it cannot be used to fiquidate the liabilities.

An additional portion of the Town of Nags Head’s net assets $133,310 represents resources that are
subject to restrictions on how they may be used. The remainder of $15,251,870 in unrestricted net assets
is the residual amount of assets that can be used without constraints established by debt covenants,
enabling legislation, or other legal requirements. However, it should be noted that only a portion of this
amount is available and unobligated to finance additional day-to-day governmental activities or unforeseen
crcumstances in the future,

Tawn of Nags Head's Nei Assets
Governmental Activities Business - Type Activities Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2008 2005

Current and Other Assets $ 12820681 $ 14279122 § 6473063 % 7419930 § 18283734 § 71,699,052

Capital Assets, Net 14,421 240 12,182,164 6,248,872 5,198 544 20,670,212 17,380,708
Total Assets 27,241,921 26,471,286 12,722,025 12518474 30,963,946 39,089,780
Leng-Term Dbt Cutstanding 5,705,330 6,170,274 1,150,271 1,351,268 6,855,601 7.521,542
Olher Liakilties 529,156 1,154,448 700,030 836,257 1,319,186 1,990,705
Total Liabities §,234, 480 7,324,722 1,840,301 2,187,525 8,174,787 0,512,247
Mat Assets $ 21007435 3 18,146,564 § 10781724 § 10,430,040 § 39,788,158 § 28,577,513
Investment in Capital Assats,
Met of Relatad Debt 11,273,798 10,406,803 5130179 5.037,063 16,403,077 15,4432 966
Restricted 133,310 272,141 - - 133310 272,141
. Unrestricted 8,600,327 8,467,520 5,651,545 5,383,886 16,2561 872 13,861,406
Total Net Assets 3 21,007,435 § 19,146,564 § 10,781,724 § 10,430,040 § 31,780,150 §$ 20,577,513
See Exhibit




Revenues:

Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants
Capital Grants

General Revenues:
Praperly Taxes
Other Taxes
investment [ncome
Other

Total Revenues

Expenses:

General Government

Public Safety

Public WorksfTransporlation
Environmental Protection
Interest on Lang Term Debt
Water Utility

Other

Total Expenses

Met Increase in Mel Assets
Before Transfers
Transfers

Net Assets - July 1
Net Assets - June 30

Town of Nags Head's Changes in Nat Assels

Gaovernmental Activities Business - Type Aclivities Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2005 2005
$ 605710 § 768808 $ 2663177 $ 2485027 § 3260886 § 2,253,925
1,000,571 3,974,088 - - 1,000,671 3,974,088
354,585 80,808 - - 354,585 80,806
4452 450 3774 572 - - 4,452 150 3774572
4,431,297 4,724 246 - - 4431 297 4 724 248
371,338 231 813 183,864 92,874 655 202 J24 687
616,951 684,780 334,324 447,104 B51,275 1,131,664
3 11,833011 $ 14230204 5 31R1365 F 3025005 § 15014376 § A7 264 209
2 268,425 2,330,058 - - 2,268,425 2,330,058
4,185,344 3,379,659 _ - - 4,185,344 3,279,659
1,472 469 6,251,881 - - 1,472,469 6,251,881
1,725 256 1,466,331 - - 1,725,256 1,466,331
220 646 153085 - - 220,646 183,285
- : - 2,930,590 2613785 2,930,590 2613785
9.872.140 13,581,514 2,930,590 2613,785 12,802,730 16,195,699
1,980 871 6a7 200 260,775 411,220 2,211 B46 1,068,510
{100,000} {19,400} 100,000 18,400 . -
18,146 564 18,608,674 10,430,844 10,600,329 29 577 513 28,508 003

$ 21007435 § 18146564 § 10,781,724

$ 10430949 $ 31789159 § 20,577,513

See Exhibit 2

A. Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the Town of Nags Head's net assets by $1,860,871. The
governmental activities revenue decreased by $2,406,193, which included a decrease in FEMA
reimbursement revenue from $3,754,280 in the prior year to $980,648. Ad valorem tax revenue was
up by $677,878 with other taxes down by $292,949. Investment earnings increased by $139,525,

however building permits were down for the third year in a row with a decrease of $47,260.

Without the FEMA revenue, total governmental fund revenues were up by $367,439 {+3.5%).

During the year, the Town's governmental expenses were $9,872,140 a decrease of $3,709,774
(-27.3%). Note, however, that the prior year included Isabel related expenditures of $4,950,181.
Without these storm expenditures the total expenses actually increased by $1,240,407 (+14.4%).



Other Ravenue

Charges for Services
Sources, $516,951 Cperating
’ ! $605,719 Grants/Contributions
%1.000,671
Capltal
Grantsf{Contrihutions
.o %$354,585
Investment Earmings ' '_ p
$371,338 -
..»J!RM“
o
T
R IvIy
Other Taxes gf ATy
%4,431,297 ';"'m«.%
:.@E%ﬁﬁ Ad Valorem Taxes
%mmm $4,452,450

Revenues by Source for Governmental Type Activities

B. Business Type Activities

Business type activities increased the Town of Nags Head’s net assets by $350,775. There are three
separate and distinct operations accounted for in the Enterprise Funds: the Water Utility Operations,
the Storm Water Fund, and Nags Head Leasing. Charges for service in the Water Fund increased in
both the Water Operations Fund and the Storm Water Fund by $104,130 and $74,020, respectively, as
compared to the preceding year.

Revenues by Source for Business Type Activities
Other Revenue
Sources $334,324

Investment Earnings
$183,864

Charges for Services
$£2,663,177




FINANCTAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN'S FUNDS
A. Governmental Funds

As noted eartier, the Town of Nags Head uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. The focus of the Town of Mags Head's governmental funds is
to provide infoermation on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usahle resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the Town of Nags Head’s financing requirements, Specifically,
unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town of Nags Head. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $7,069,915, while total fund balance
reached $8,826,552. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare
unreserved fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 53.44
percent of total General Fund expenditures. Note that this is up significantly from the prior year
unreserved General Fund balance of $3,430,338 (22.1% percent of expenditures).

At June 30, 2006, the governmental funds of the Town of Nags Head reported combined fund balance
of $10,218,732, a 7.8 percent increase over last year. Included in this change in fund balance are
increases in fund balance in both the General and newly created Beach Nourishment Project Fund
partially offset by a decrease in fund balance in the Capital Reserve Fund.

B. Proprietary Funds

The Town of Nags Head's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide statement but in more detail. Unrestricted net assets of the Water Fund at the end
of the fiscal year amounted to $5,480,088. This represents an increase of $142,972 from the pricr
year. This increase Is compounded by an increase in unrestricted net assets for the Storm Water Fund,
newly created in the prior fiscal year, of $171,001,

C. Capital Assets

The Town of Nags Head's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities
as of June 30, 20086, totals $20,670,212 {net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include
buildings, land, intangibles, machinery and equipment and vehicles. :

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the following additions (there were no
significant demolitions or disposals):

= Completion of the construction for the South Nags Head Fire Station.
= Completion of the construction for raplacement elevated water storage tank.




Town of Mags Head's Capital Assets
{nel of depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business - Type Activilies Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2008 2005

Land % 5020808 5 5002889 § 204205 § 204205 § 5225013 § 5207204
Censtruction in Progress 500,749 536,535 - 565,715 509,749 1,082,250
Bulldings 5,171,668 3,608,812 2,886,688 1,333,619 8,058,256 4,842 434
Other Improvemnents 621,181 195,744 - - 621,181 185,744
Equipmeant 671,673 5Ff 722 bfb,372 418,345 1,247 045 986,070
Vehicles 2,476,261 2,270,362 76,759 73,923 2,503,020 2,344.275
Intangibles - - 2,505,048 2,612,735 2,503,948 2,612,735

Total $ 14,421,240 § 12,192,164 § 6,248972 § 5,198,545 § 20,670,212 $ 17,390,709

See Exhipit 1

D. Long Term Debt

As of June 30, 2008, the Town of Nags Head had no banded debt. The Town's total debt decreased by
$694,637 far the year. . '

Town of Nags Head's Qustanding Debt

Governmenlal Aclivities Business - Type Activilies Talal
2006 2006 2006 2006 2006 2005
Finance Contracts $ 4214715 § H007.866 $ 950,683 § 1.097.158 3% 5165403 § 6,105,025
Capital Leases 1,134,231 832,728 168,105 224 623 1,302,336 1,067,351
Compensaled Absences 356,384 328,680 31,478 29,488 387,862 358,166

$ 5705330 § 6170274 $ 1150271 § 1,351,268 § 6855601 § 7,521,542

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The Level of unemployment in Dare County ranged from 2.4% to 8.4% compared to the seasonally
adjusted statewide average of 4.9%,

Construction in fiscal year 2006 decreased overall in the Town of Nags Head by $13,921,554 {-24.6%)
from the previous year. This was due to a decrease in commercial construction of $10,397,000 and a
decrease in residential and ather construction of $3,524,554. Both building permit fees and review fees
were also down in fiscal year 2005-2006, the third straight decrease in annual revenues for building
permit fees,

The property tax base increased by 194.19% to $2,970,977,582 in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006.
Occupancy tax and sales tax revenues for the Town were up in fiscal year 2005-2006. Land transfer
tax revenues took a big hit during the year with the stalling real estate market,
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The Town’s adopted budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2005 includes a reduction in the
property tax rate {o .1475 par $100 in assessed valuation compared te .373 In the previgus year as a
result of the county wide property revaluation.

Considering the above indicators when adopting the operating budget for the next fiscai year, the
Town's adopted 2006-2007 budget decreased by $3,788,060 (-23.6%) over the 2005-2006 amended
budget and decreased $693,533 (-5.38%) over the adopted budget for 2005-2006,

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING June 30, 2007

Governmental Activities: The adopted budget for fiscal year 2005-2006 is based on the estimated
increased property valuation of $2,966,256,884 up .40% from the prior year valuation of
2,954,382,671.970,460,090 allowing the tax rate io remain steady at $.1475/$100, The adopted
budget reflects a decrease of $693,533 from the prior year's adopted budget. Decreased in funding
include a reduction of $250,000 in land transfer tax revenues, a reduction of $400,000 in anticipated
grant revenues, a reduction in building permit fees of $75,000, reduced rents from the YMCA pass-
through of $99,000, and a reduction in funding from the Capital Reserve Fund of $130,000. These are
partially offset by increases in budgeted revenues from investment interest of $205,000, increased
reimbursement from the Water Fund for indirect costs of $40,000, and cable franchise fees of
$114,000.

Budgeted expenditures in the General Fund are generally flat with the exception of funding for
Planning & Development which decreased by $389,000 due to the reduction in grant projects of
$408,000 which corresponds to the reduction in revenues noted above. All access grant project
expenditures and revenues for FY 2005 - 2006 were included in a Beach and Sound Access Capital
Project Fund. The pass-thraugh debt payments for the YMCA debt are also down by $95,000. In
addition, there was an overall reduction in funding for new capital of $370,000. These decreases were
at least partially offset for full annual funding for staffing the new fire station in south Nags Head and &
3.4% cost of living adjustment for all employees.

Business —Type Activities: The water rates in the Town will remain the same with projected growth in
gallons purchased of 1.3%. Appropriated retained earnings will be used to fund the debt service on
the new water tank, water line improvement projects, and to match any grant funds received for sand
bottom tank replacement. '

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of Nags Head's finances and to
demonstrate the Town’s accountability for the money it raceives, Questions concerning any information

provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to Town of Nags Head,
Administrative Services, PO, Box 99, Nags Head, NC 27959 or by calling 252-441-5508,

11




Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2006

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current a5sets:
Cash and cash equivalents % 6,525,397 3 5,009,612 $ 12,535,009
Investments 2,801,677 - 2,801,677
Taxes receivable {net) 3,981 - 5,981
Accounts receivable (net} 95,367 419,552 514,919
Accrued interest receivable 3975 - 31,975 -
Due from other guvernments 1,079,725 540 1,080,265
Inventories 69,263 43,229 112,492
Special assessments 996 - 596
Prepaid items : 4,796 _ 120 4,916
Tatal current assets 10,615,177 b,473,053 17,002 230
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 154,504 - 154,504
Maon-current assets:
Capital Lease Receivable 2,047,000 - 2,047,000
{apital Assets (Note 4):
Land, non-depreclable
improvements and
construction in progress 5,530,556 204,205 5,734,761
Other capital assets, net of
depreciation 8,890,584 £,044,767 14,935,451
Total capital assets 14,421,240 5,248,572 20,670,212
Total Assets $ 27,241,521 4 12722025 4 39,953 946
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payvable £ 283,085 % 141,763 $ 424 A49
Accrued liabilities 90,488 6,654 97,142
Unearned revenue 44,403 257,152 301,555
Bonds and depasits 109,895 384,461 494 356
Due to ather governments 1,284 - 1,284
Long-termn lizbifities. ,
Due within one year 1,322,933 164,157 1,487,090
Due in mare than ong year 4,382,357 286,114 5,368,511
Total liabilities 5234486 1,940,301 8,174,787
NET ASSETS
Imvested in capital assets, net of
refated debt 11,273,798 5,130,179 16,403,977
Restricted for:
Poweli bill expenditures 128,853 - 128,853
Public safety enforcement 4,457 - 4,457
Unrestricted 5,600,327 5,651,545 15,351 872
Total net assets § 21007435 $ 10,781,724 3 31,789,159

The noles to the fisancial statements are an integral part of this statemen.

12



Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Statement of Activities ,
For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Frogram Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Functions/Programs
Primary Government;
Governmental Activities;
General Government % 2,268,425 3 544,238 $ 4,155 -
Public Safety - 4,185,344 651,481 : 18,369 -
Public Works/Transportation 1,472,469 - ‘978,147 354,585
Environmental Protection 1,725,256 - - -
Interest on long-term debt 220,646 - - -
Total governmental activities
{See Note 1) 9,872,140 605,719 1,000,671 354,585
Business-type activities;
Water 2,829,877 2,552,381 - 330,395
Stonm Water 100,713 110,796 - -
Nags Head Leasing - - - _
Total business-type activities 2,930,590 2,663,177 - -
Total prirmary government % 12,802,730 $ 3,268,890 % 1,000,671 354,585
General revenues;:
Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purpose

Occupancy tax

Land transfer taxes

Sales taxes

Cther taxes
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Unrestricted investment earnings
Miscellaneous -

Transfers
Total general revenues, special items and transfers

Totat change in net assets

Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

The notes to the financial statements are an ntegral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 2

Met (Expense) Revenue and changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmental
Activities

$  (1,720,032)

. (4,105,494)
! (139,737)
(1,725,256)

(220,646)

(7,911,165)

{/,911,165}

4,452,450
1,650,845
1,053,725
1,686,091
40,636
380,061
371,338
236,890

{100,000)
9,772,036

1,860,871

19,146,564

$ 21,007,435

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business-type
Activities

Rl 2 C
[

Total

¢ (1,720,032)
{4,105,494)
(139,737)
(1,725,256}
(220,646}

(7,911,165)

52,899
10,083

62,982
62,982

183,864
3,929

100,000
287,793

350,775

10,430,948

$ 10,781,724

52,89
10,083

62,982

(7,848,183)

4,452,450
1,650,845
1,053,725
1,686,091
40,636
380,061
555,202
240,819

10,050,829

2,211,646

29,577,513

31,789,159
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equlvalents
Investments
Taxes recelvabile {nek)
Accounts recelvable {net)
Acerued interest recelvable
Cue from other governments
Due from other funds
Inventorles
Spectal assessments
Prepald tems
Capital lease recelvable
Restricted assels;

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LEABILYTIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabifities:

Atcounts pavable

Accrued expenses

Bonds and deposits

Due to other funds

Due to other governments

Deferred revenue

Unearned revenue

Total llabilities

Fund balances:

Reserved for:

Encumbrances

Inventories

State statute

Streets - Powall bill

Prepalds

Drug enforcement

Restricted assats

Unreserved
Degignated for future capital
Destgnated for next year budget
Total fund balances

Total labdiitles and Fund balances

Amounts reports for governmenta! activities in the statement

Town of Nags Head, North Carolina

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2006

Exhibit 3

Major Funds
Capiltal Beach

General Reserve Nourlshment Totai
$ 5331994 4 65,270 5 504,127 $ 6525397
2,801,677 - - 2,801,677
0,981 - 49,981
495,367 - - 55,367
31,975 - - 31,975
1,079,725 - - 1,079,725
200,773 201,773
69,263 - - 69,263
996 - - 956
4,756 - - 4,796
2,047,000 - - 2,047,000
154,504 - - 154,504
£ 11,627,278 4 §51,049 % 504,127 $ 13,022,454
$ 280,090 3 % 2,996 % 283,086
90,438 - - 50,988
109,895 - - 109,895
201,773 . - 201,773
1,284 - 1,284
2,072,793 - 2,072,793
— %4,403 - .- L : . 44403
2,800,726 - 2,996 2,803,722
262,513 - 1,392,153 1,594,666
63,263 - - 069,263
1,192,251 201,773 1,394,024
128,853 - 128,853
4,735 - - 4,795
4,457 - - 4,457
154,504 - 154,504
6,480,422 - - 6,480,422
- 493 %76 {891,022) {398,045)
585 493 196,300 - 785,793
8,826,552 891,049 501,131 10,218,732
3 11,527,278 $ B91049 3 504,127 $ 13,022,454

of net assets {Exhibit 1) are dilferent because;
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in

the funds.,

Liabilities for earned but deferred revenues In the

fund statements,
Deferred FEMA receivahle
Ceferred capital lease receivable
Deferred taxes recelvable

Some liabilities, including bonds payable and acerusd Interest,
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore

are not reported in the funds.
Met assets of governmental activities

Tha motes o the lnandlal Satements are an ntegral part of Uys statement,
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$ 14,421,240

2,047,000
25,793

_(5,705,330)
$ 21,007,435




Exhibit 4

Page 1 of 2
Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Statement of Reyvenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Goverbmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
Major Funds
General Capital Beach
Fund Reserve Naowrishment Total

REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes % 4,440,726 5 - % - ¥ 4,440,726
Other taxes and licenses 4,471,101 - - 4,471,101
Unrestricted intergovernmental 340,257 - - 340,257
Restricted Imtergovarnmental 2,601,200 - - 2,601,200
Permits and fees - 504,085 - - 504,085
Sales and services 9,041 - - g,041
Investment earnings 351,226 18,634 1,478 371,338
Misceilaneous 665,192 - - 665,192

Total revenues 13,382,828 18,634 1,478 13 402,940
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government 2,203,315 - - 2,203,215

Public Safety 3,507,522 - - 3,907,522

Environmental Protection 1,381,014 - - 1,381,614

Public Works 1,259,762 - - 1,259,762
Debt service: - - i

Principal 1,355,924 - - 1,355,924

Interest and other charges 220,646 - ' - 220,646
Capital outlay 2,901,303 - 200,347 3,101,650

Total expenditures 13,230,086 - 200,347 13,430,433

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures 152,742 1B,634 (198,869) {27,493)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers fram other funds . 421,632 146,457 700,000 1,268,129
Transfers to other funds (546,497) {421,632) - (1,368,123)
Installment purchase

abligations Issued 864,273 - - 864,273

Total other financing sources {uses) 335408 {275,135) 700,000 764,273

Net change in fund balance 492,150 (256,501} 501,131 736,780
Fund balances - beginning 8,334,402 1,147,550 - 9,481,952
Fund balarices - ending $_8826,552 4 891,049 % 501,131 $ 10,218,732

{eontinued)

The Aotes to the fnancis! statements are an itegral part of s statement.




Exhibit 4

Town of Nags Head, North Carolina Page 2 of 2
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Amounts reported for gevernmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds . $ 736,780

Governmental funds report capital outlay as
expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities the cost of thase assets is aliocated over
their estimated usefu! lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the
current period.

Capital Outlay $ 3,101,650
Depreciation (872,577 2,229,073

Revenutes in the statement of activities that do not
provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues/expenditures in the funds.

Change in deferred revenue for tax revenues 11,724
Change in deferred FEMA revenue (1,196,653)
Change in deferred capital lease receivable (385,000)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Meither
transaction has any effect on net assets, This is the
amount by which principal repayments exceeded

the proceeds from lease purchase financing.

Debt Issued $ (864,273)

Increase in compensated absence {26,704)

Principal Repayments 1,355,924 464,947
Total changes in net assets of governmental activities $ 1,860,871

The noles to the financial staternents are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
General Fund and Annvally Bngeted Capital Reserve Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscat Year Ended June 30, 2008

General Fungd

Variance with
Final Budget -

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues;
Ad valorem taxes $ 4,331,636 $ 4,331,636 % 4,440,726 % 109,090
Other taxes and licenses 4,495,000 4,495, (00 4,471,101 (23,899)
Unrestricted intergovernmental ’ 336,500 336,500 340,257 3,757
Rastricted intergovernmentat 824,662 . 2,912,875 2,601,200 {311,675)
Parmits and fess 567,150 577,150 504,085 {73,065)
Special assessments 500 500 499 (1)
Sales and services 7,000 7,040 9,041 2,041
Investment earnings 200,000 232,000 351,226 119,226
Miscellaneous 754,853 841,795 664, 693 {177,102)
Total revenues 11,557,101 13,734,456 _13,382,828 {351 628)
Expenditures;
Current;
General Government 3,354,454 3,386,926 2,627,676 (758,750)
Publit Safety 4,086,072 4,528,132 4,106,280 {421,852)
Enviranmertal Protection 1,537,281 1,963,206 1,514,867 £48,339)
Public Works 1,825,903 3,340,033 3,004,693 {335,340}
Debt service:
Frincipal 1,009,859 1,377,006 1,355,024 {21,082)
Interest and other charges 401,981 401,981 220,645 {1B81,335)
Capital Improvements Plan 412,134 5,260 - + (5,269}
Contingency 73,000 15,158 - {15,158}
Total expenditures 12,702,684 15017211 13,230,086 (1,787.12%)
Revenues gver (under) expenditures (1,145,583} {1,282,755) 152,742 1,435,457
Other financing sources (uses):
TFransfers from othar funds 782,372 426,932 471,632 {5,300)
Transfers to other funds {200,000 {560,000} {946,497} 13,503
Installment purchase
obligations issued - 854 273 564,273 -
Appropriated Fund Balance 563,261 951,550 - {551 550)
Total other financing sources (Uses) 1,145,583 1,282,755 339,408 {943,347)
Net change in fund balance % - 3 - 442,150 % 492,150
Furd balances, beginning of year 8,334,402
Frior perid adjustment
Fund balanges, end of year $ 8,826,552

The notes to the fnancial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 5

Capital Reserve Fund
Variance with
Final Budget -

Actual Pasitive
QOriginal Final = Amounts {Negative)
$ - 8 - % -3 -
- 18,634 18,634
- - 15,634 18,634
- - 18,634 18,634
100,000 150,000 146,497 {3,503)
{307,322} (426,932) (421,632 5,300
207,322 276,532 - (276,932}
- - (275.135) (275,135}
% - ] - {256,501) $ {256,501}
1,147,550
$ 891,099

The notes to the financial staterments are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS

Current, zssets;
Cash and cash equivalents
ACcounts receivatile trade (net)
Accounts recefvable ather {net})
Due from other governments
Frepalds
Inventories

Total current assets

Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Capital assets:

Land, non-depreciable
improvements and
construction in progress

Other capital assets, net of
depreciation
Total capital assets {net)

Tatal Assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabfities:
Accounts payable
Accrued Nabilities
Unearned revenue
Custorner deposits
Cash Bonds
Compensated absenges - currant
Capital leases payable - current
Total current liabilities

Moncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences - non current
Capital leases payable - non current
Total noncurrent Nabilities

Total habflities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt

Unrestricied
Total net assets

Town of Nags Head, North Caralina
Statement of Net Assats
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2006

Enterprise Funds

Exhibilt &

Major Funds Noh-Major
Water Storm Water Nags Head
Fund Fund __Leasing Total

$ 5821543 3 187,613 ¥ 456 £ 6,009,612
400,698 4,217 - 404,915
14,637 - - 14,637
540 - - 540
- 120 - 120
43,229 - - 43,229
6,280,647 151,950 456 6,473,053
204,205 - 204,205
5,044,767 - - 6,044,767
6,248,972 - - 6,248,972
4 12,529,619 g 191,950 3 456 $ 12,722,025
$ 120,814 % 20,949 L - % 141,763
6,654 - : 6,654
257,152 - - 257,152
380,571 - - 380,571
3,990 - - 3,690
27,571 - - 27,571
136,586 - - 136,586
033,238 20,949 - 954,187
3,907 - - 3,907
982,207 - - 982,207
986,119 - - 086,114
1,919,352 20,549 - 1,940,301
5,130,179 - - 5,130,179
5,480,088 171,001 456 5,651,545

$ 10,610,267 3 171,001 $ 456

$ 10,781,724

The neles to the fnandal statements are an infegrad pert of this statement.
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Statement of Revenuves, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assels

Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

OPERATING REVENLES
Charges for services
Contribution to Fresh Pond
Charges to gther governmental units
Rents

FEMA Recovery
Tap and connection fees
Late payment penalties
Water Tag Fees
Misceltaneaus

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Adminlstration
Septfc Health
Operatlons
Fresh Pond Qperations
Distribution
Storm Water
Depreciation and amortization

Tokal operating expenses

Total operating inCome

NONOPERATING REVENUES {EXPENSES)
Investmant sarnings
interest expense

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses)

Income {lnss) before contributions
and transfers

Capital contributions from Impact fees

Capital cantributions from Infrastructure
Transfer from General Fund

Change in nct assets

Total aet assets - beginning
Total net assels - ending

Exhibit 7

Enterprise Funds
Water Storm Water Nags Head
Fund Fund Leasing Tokal
$ 2076403 % 110,794 % .- $ 2,187,199
250,287 - - 250,287
73,876 - - 73,676
93,104 - - 99,104
323 - - 323
23,405 - - 23,405
18,131 - - 18,111
10,872 - - 10,872
3,929 - 3929
2,556,310 __ue7% - 2,667,106
146,538 - 146,538
272,218 - 272,218
1,328,873 - - 1,128,873
237,865 - - 737,945
525,830 - - 525,830
- 100,713 - 100,713
268809 - - 268,809
2,780,233 100,713 - 2,880,946
{223,923) 10,083 - {213,840}
179,260 4,592 12 183,864
{49,644) - : {45 ,644)
129,616 4 592 12 134,220
{94,367) 14,575 12 (79,620}
287,000 - - 287000
43,395 - - 43,395
- 100,000 - 100,000
236,088 114,675 12 50,775
10,374,175 56,326 444 10,430,949
§ 10610267 3 171,001 & 456 % 10,781 724

The frotes (o the Francls) staterments are an infograf part of i statemant.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash recelved from oustomers

Cash pald for goods and services .

Cash pald o or on behalf of employees for services
Custorner depasits received

Custamer deposits returmed

Other operating revenues

Met cash provided (used) by operating activities

Exhibit B

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Total cash Aows from noncapitat financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINAMNCING ACTIVITIES

Initial impact faes received

Transfer from General Fund

Proceeds from financing capitsl assets

Interest paid on debt financing

Hel sepliz laans

Principal paid on debt firancing

Acquisition of capital assets
MNet cash provided (used) by capital and ralated

fimendng activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Intarest

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Balances - beginning of the year

Page 1aF2
Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 20, 2006
Business-Type Activitics
Enterprise Funds
Water Storm Nags Head
Fund Water Leasing Total

$ 2,773,756 $ 111,211 3 $ 2,884,967
{1,869,903) (75,884} {1,%49,787)
{5B8,465) - - {658, 465)

12,493 - 12,493

104,859 - - 104,859

332,750 31,327 - 34,077

255,040 - - 255,000

- 100,000 - 100,000

21,868 - - 21,868

{49,644) (49,644}

B,445 8,445

(224,B57) - - (224,857)

{1,275,5841) - (1,275 841)

(1,265,029} 100,000 - (1,165,029}

179,260 . 4592 12 183,864

£753,019) 135,919 12 {617,688}

6,574,562 51,694 . 6,616,700

3 5,821,543 % 187,613 4 456 $ 6,009,612

Balances - end of the year

The motes to the finandial stalements are an integral part of this statrment.
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Exhibit 8

Page 2 0f 2
Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds
Water Storm Nags Head
Fund Water Leasing Total
Reconciltation of operating Incomea ta net cash provided {223,923) 10,083 - £213,840)
by operating actives

Operating Income

Adjustments to reconcile cperating income ta net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 268,809 - - 260,809
Changes n assets and llabilities:

{Increase} decrease In accounts recejvable 320,803 415 - 321,218

{Increase} decrease In inveatories 245 - - 245

{Increase) decreasa in prepaids - {120} -

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable {22,760 20,949 - (6,811}

Increase {decrease) in accruad liabilitles {19.430) - - (19,430}

Increase (decreasa) in custamer deposits 12,493 - - 12,493

Increase {decrease) n deferred revenue 1,513 - - 1,513

Total adjustments 506,673 21,244 - 577,017

Wet cash provided by operating activities 4% 333,750 $ 31327 3 - § 369,077

The nctes fo the Arancial statemants are an integral part of Bs statemant,
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Town of Nags Head, North Caroling
-Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds-
June 30, 2006

Pension
Trust
ASSETS :
Cash and cash equivalents ' $ 221,297
Total Assets $ 221,297
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 221,287

thie notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement:
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Exhibit 10

Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Pension
Trust
Additions

Employer Contributions $ 28,686
Investment Earnings 6,073
Total investment earnings 6,073
Less investment expense -
Total additions 34,959

Deductions
Benefits -
Administrative expenses -
Total deductions _ -
Change in net assets 34,059
Met assets - beginning of the year 186,338
Net assels - end of the year $ 221,297

The notes to the financial staterments are an lnteqral part of this statement.
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Town of Nags Head conform to generally accepted accounting principles as
applicable to governments. The foilowing is a8 summary of the more signiflcant accounting policies.

A. Reporting Entity

~The Town of Nags Head is a municipal corporation, which is governed by an elected mayor and four
commissioners. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements
present the government and its companent units, entities for which the government is considered to be
financially accountable. Blended component units, aithough legally separate entities, are, in substance,
part of the government’s operations and so data from these units are combined with data of the primary
government. The blended component unit has a June 30 year end.

Blended Component Unit — Nags Head Leasing is a not for profit corporation formed and operated for the
purpose of providing financial assistance to the Town of Nags Head and to enable the Town to acquire
water system improvements or other capital items. Nags Head teasing Corporation is reported as an
Enterprise fund.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-widge Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government. These statements include the financial activities of the overall
government, except for fiduciary activities, Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting
of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmentaf and business-type activities
of the Town. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues,
and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the
different business-type activities of the Town and for each function of the Town’s governmental activities.
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are
clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds
have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include {a) fees and charges paid by
the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particutar program. Revenues that are
not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenyes,

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide information about the Town’s funds.
Separate statements for each fund category — goverrumental, proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented.
The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed
in @ separate column, All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as
nonmajor funds.
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which 2ach party
receives and gives up essentially egual values, Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment

earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The Town reports the foliowing major governmental funds:

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. The General Fund accounts
for all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund. The primary
revenue sources are ad valorerm taxes, grants, and various other taxes and licenses, The primary
expenditures are for public safety, public works/transportation, and environmental protection services,

Capital Reserve Fund. This fund is used to accumulate funds for capital projects.

Beach Nourishment Capital Project Fund. This fund accounts for the Town's activities for a beach
nourishment project.

The Town reports the following major enterprise funds:

Water Fund. This fund is used to account for the Town's water aperations.

Storm Water Fund. This fund is used to account for the Town's storm water managemeant operations.
Nags Head Leasing. This is a Blended Component Unit.

The Town reports the following fiduciary fund .types‘:
Pension Trust. This is a fiduciary fund for the Law Enforcement Officers Supplemental Retirement,
C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the Town are maintained during the year
using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fidudiary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide,
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus. The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are
reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time [fabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
Nonexchange transactions, in which the Town gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (ot
giving) equal vaiue in exchange, include property taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from
grants, entitlerments, and danations is recognized in the fiscatl year in which all eligibility requirements have
been satisfied.
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to custormners or applicants for goods, services,
or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions,
including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather
than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principat ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
Town's enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The Town alsa recognizes as
operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended te recover the cost of connecting new customers to the
system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting thls definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Finandial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues
are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
fncurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-
term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. -

‘The Town considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end, except for
property taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as revenue because the amount is not
susceptible to accrual. At Jupe 30, taxes receivable are materially past due and are not considered to be
an available resource to finance the operations of the current year. Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law
altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in
North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, Dare County is respansible for billing and callecting .
the property taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in
the County, including the Town of Nags Head. For motor vehicles registered under the staggered system,
property taxes are due the first day of the fourth month after the vehicles are registered. The billed taxes
are applicable to the fiscal year in which they become due. Therefore, the Town's vehicle taxes for
vehicles registered in Dare County from March 2005 through February 2006 apply to the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006. Uncollected taxes that were billed during this period are shown as a receivable in these
financial statements and are offset by deferred revenues. For vehicles registered under the annual
system, taxes are due on May 1 of each year. For those vehicles registered and billed under the annual
system, uncollected taxes are reported as a receivable on the financial statements and are offset by
deferred revenues because the due date and the date upon which interest begins to accrue passed prior to
June 30. The taxes for vehicles registered annually that have already been collected as of year-end are
also reflected as deferred revenues at June 30, 2006 because they are intended to finance the Town's
operations during the 2007 fiscal year.
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Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the Town are recognized as revenue,
Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they
are not measurable until received in cash. Grant revenues which are unearmed at year-end are recorded
as unearned revenues. Under the terms of grant agreements, the Town funds certain programs by a
combinaticn of specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus,
when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to
finance the program. It is the Town’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such

programs, and then by general revenues.

As permitted by generally accepted accounting principles, the Town has elected to apply only applicable
FASB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1985 that do not contradict GASB

pronouncements in its accounting and reporting practices for its enterprise funds,
D. Budgetary Data
1. Budget

As required by the North Carolina General Statutes, the governing board must adopt by July 1 an annual
balanced budget ordinance for all funds except for those funds that operate under project ordinances. All
annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. The annual budget is prepared on the modified accrual
basis of accounting to be compatible with the accounting system used in recording transactions. Project
ordinances are adopted for the Beach Nourishment Capital Project Fund and Beach Access Project Fund,
both of which are general governmental fund capital projects.

Expenditures may not Jegally exceed appropriations at the departmental level for all annually budgeted
funds and at the object level for the multi-year funds. Budgetary control is exercised in all funds, and
appropriations are made at the departmental {functional) level and amended as necessary by the
governing board. The Town Manager is authorized to make interdepartmental transfers in the same fund
up to 10% of the appropriated monies for the depariment whose allocation is reduced; however, any
revisions that, alter total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the governing board. During the
year, several amendments to the original budget were necessary including material adjustments related to

hurricane effects.
2. Encumbrances

As required by North Carolina State Statutes, the Town maintains encumbrance accounts that are
considered to be "budgetary accounts”. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end represent the estimated
amounts of the expenditures ultimately to result if unperformed contracts in process at year-end are
completed. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end do not constitute expendituras or liabilities.

At June 30, 2006, $202,513 of open purchase orders and contracts were outstanding in the General Fund.
These encumbrances outstanding are repaorted as "Reserved for encumbrances” in the fund balance
section of the balance sheet for the General Fund and will be re-appropriated in the subsequent year’s
budget. The Beach Nourishment Capital Project Fund had $1,392,153 in outstanding encumbrances at
June 30, 2006, The Water Fund and Storm Water Funds had $28,572 and $97,933, respectively, in
encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2006. There were no open purchase orders in any of the other
Town funds.
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E. Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the Town are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required by
State law [G.5. 159-31]. The Town may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings
association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the Town may establish time deposit
accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the Town to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations
fully guaranteed botb as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North
Carolina; honds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority; cbligations of
certain non-guaranteed federai agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers’
acceptances and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust {(NCCMT), a SEC-registered mutual fund,

The Town's investments with a maturity of more than one year at acguisition and non-money market
investments are reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The securities of the
NCCMT Cash Portfolio, a SEC-registered {2a-7) money market mutual fund, are valued at fair value, which
is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value, Money market
investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are reported at
amortized cost, Non-participating Interest earning investment contracts are reported at cost.

In accordance with State law, the Town has invested in securities which are callable and which provide for
periodic interest rate increases in specific increments unti! maturity. These investments are reported at
fair value as determined by quoted market prices.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Town pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize
investment income., Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are
considered cash and cash equivalents.

3. Restricted Assets

The unexpended debt proceeds of the General Fund and the Water Fund are classified as restricted assets
because their use is completely restricted to the purpose for which the debt was originally issued.

4. Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13{a)], the Town levies ad valorem taxes on
preperty other than motor vehicles an July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on

September 1 {lien date); however, interest does not accrue until the following January 6. These taxes are
based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2005,
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5. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

All receivabies that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance far
doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written

off in prior years.
&, Inventory and Prepaid Items

The inventories of the Town are valued at cost (first-in, first-out), which approximates market. The
Town's General Fund inventary consists of expendable supplies that are recorded as expenditures as used
rather than when purchased.

The inventories of the Town's enterprise fund consist of materials and supplies held for subsequent use,
The cast of these inventories is expensed when used or held for resale rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government — wide and fund financial statements and expensed as the items are

used.
7. Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than a
certain cost and an estimated vseful life in excess of five years. Minimum capitalization cost is $5,000.
Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital
assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. The cost of nermal maintenance
and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

In conjunction with implementing GASB 34, "The New Reporting Modal”, the Town began capitalizing
public domain (Minfrastructure™) capital assets consisting of roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and
sidewalks, drainage systems, water lines, and fighting systems as of July 1, 2003. Infrastructure assets
exceeding the Town’s capitalization threshold will be reported as capital assets n the Statement of Net
Assets. Infrastructure assets acguired prior to July 1, 2003 were not retroactively reported; therefore, the
infrastructure capital assets in the Statement of Net Assets only include assets purchased after July 1,

2003.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives
Infrastructure 30
Buildings 40
Improvements 25
Vehicles 5to 10
Furniture and equipment 51020
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8. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and cther tong-term obligations are reported as labilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets,

9, Compensated Absences

The vacation policy of the Town provides for the accumulation of up to thirty-six days earned vacation
leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the Town's government-wide and proprietary
funds, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary-related payments are recorded
as the leave is earned. The Town has assumed a first-in, first-out method of using accurmulated
compensated time. The portion of that time that is estimated to be used in the next fiscal year has been
designated as a current liability in the government-wide financial statements.

The Town’s sick leave policy provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave, Sick leave does
not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the
determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since the Town has no obligation for
the accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made.

In accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Town allows non-exempt employees to accrue
compensatory time up to the specified limits of 240 hours for non swormn public safety and 480 hours for
sworn public safety employees. The Town uses a first-in, first-out method for the use of this
compensatery time,

10. Net AssetsfFund Balances

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent constraints
on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or requlations
of other governments or imposed by law through state statute.

In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations of fund balance represent amounts that
cannot be appropriated or are legally segregated for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. '

State law [G.5. 158-13{b)(16)] restricts appropriation of fund balance for the subsequent year's budget to
an amount not to exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities, encumbrances, and
deferred revenues arising from cash receipts as those amounts stand at the close of the fiscal year
preceding the budget year.
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The governmentai fund types classily fund balances as follows:

Reserved:

Reserved for inventories - portion of fund balance that is not avaitable for appropriation because it
represents the year-end fund baiance of ending inventories, which are not expendable, available

resources.

Reserved for encumbrances - portion of fund balance availlable to pay for commitments related to
purchase orders or contracts which remain unperformed at year-end.

Reserved by State statute - portion of fund balance, in addition to reserves for encumbrances and reserves
for inventories, which is not available for appropriation under State taw [G.5. 159-8(a)]. This amount is
usually comprised of accounts receivable and interfund receivables, which have not been offset by

deferred revenues,

Reserved for streets - Powell Bifl - partion of fund balance that is available for appropriation but legally
segregated for street construction and maintenance expenditures. This amount represents the balance of

the totat unexpended Powell Bill funds.

Reserved for prepaids — portion of fund balance that is not available for appropriation because it
represents the year-end fund balance for prepaid expenses for the subsequent fiscal year which are not
expendable, available resources.

Reserved for restricted assets — portion of fund balance which is not available for appropriation because it
represents loan escrow funds not yet reimbursed for the purchase of capital assets financed by debt.

Reserved for drug forfeiture/enforcement — portion of fund balance that is available for appropriation but
legally segregated for expenditure as designated by the Director of Public Safety.

Unreserved:

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures - portion of the total fund balance available for
appropriation that has been designated for the adopted 2006 — 2007 budget ordinance.

Undesignated - portion of total fund balance available for appropriation that is uncommitted at year-end.
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I1. Detail Notes oh All Funds
A. Assets
1. Deposits

All the deposits of the Town are either insured or collateralized by using the Pooling Methad. Under the
Poaoling Mathod, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by
the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a
fiduciary capacity for the Town, these deposits are considered to be held by the Town's agents in its
name. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest
bearing depuosits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits, Depositories using the
Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured
deposits, The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the Town or the escrow agent.
Because of the inability to measure the exact amounts of collateral pledged for the Town under the
Pooling Method, the potential exists for under-collaterization, and this risk may increase in periods of high
cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Caralina enforces strict standards of financial stability
“for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method. The Town does not have
a policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits.

At June 30, 2006, the Town's deposits had a carrying amount of $2,057,786 and a bank balance of
$2,300,529. Of the bank balance, $596,521 was covered by federal depository insurance and the
remainder was covered by collateral beld under the pocling method. At June 30, 2006, the Town’s petiy
cash fund totated $250.

2. Investments

At June 30, 2006, the Town's investiments were as follows:

Less than .
Investment Type Fair Value 6 Months 6-12 Months. 1-3Years 3-7 Years
US Goverpment Obligations $ 1463255 % 263,849 122,53 '$ 1,076,872 % -
US Government Agencies 1,338,422 314,086 122,735 550,582 351,019
NC Capital Management Trust -
Term Portfolio® 10,852,774 - 10,852,774 - -
Total: $ 13654451 § 577930 $ 11098048 $ 1627454 § 351019

* Because the NC Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio had duration of 0.9 years, it was presented as
an investment with a maturity of 6-12 months.

Interest Rate Risk, As a means of limiting its expaosure to fair value losses arising from interest rates, the

Town's investment policy limits investments maturing in mere than two years from the purchase date to
no more than 20% of the portfolio balance.
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Credit Risk. The Town’s investments in the NC Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio is unrated. The
Term Portfolio is authorized to invest in obligations of the US government and agencies, and also in high-
grade money market instruments as permitted under North Carolina General Statutes 159-30 as amended.

The Town has no policy on credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The Town’s policy prohibits the investment off all long term securities with a
single institution. There is no limit on the amount the Town may invest in any one fssuer. The Town has
more than 5% invested in Federal Home Loan Mortgage securities. These investments are 6.27% of the
Town's total investments.

3, Receivables

The receivables shown in Exhibit A at June 30, 2000 were as follows:

Due from
. other Interest
Accounts Taxes Governments Receivable Total
Governmental Activities:
General ¢ 05367 $19,981 ¢ 1,079,725 $ 31,975 % 1,227,048
Other governmental - - - - -
Allowance for doubtful accounts - {10,000) - - {10,000)

Total governmental activities $ 95367 $ 9981 ¢ 1079725 $ 31,975 % 1,217,048

Business-type Activities:

Water $ 430850 § - & 540 $ . 431,390
Stormwater 4,217 - - - 4,217
Allowance for doubtful acchunts _ (15,515) - - - (15,515)
Total business type activities  $ 419,552 § - § 540§ - $ 420,002

Due from other governments consisted of the following:

Occupancy tax ¢ 287,439
Land transfer tax 227,872
Sales taxes 259,285
Tax reimbursement 120,358
Ocean rescue services 18,650
Grants 152,315
Other 13,766
Total $1,075,725
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Capital Lease receivable

The Town assisted the Outer Banks Family YMCA in obtaining tax exempt financing for the YMCA property
located within the Town of Nags Head. The Town acquired titte to the YMCA property and borrowed funds
from the Bank of America in the amount of $3,721,000. The Town has entered into an agreement to lease
the property to the YMCA for the total of the amount due under the financing arrangement and has no !
financial responsibility beyond lease payments. The total payments received under this lease for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2006 were $471,745 and the payments made were $385,000 in principal and $86,745
in inferest.

4, Capital Assets |

Capital asset activity for the Primary Government for the year ended June 30, 2006, was as follows:

Beginning Decreasesf Ending |
Balances Ircreases Transfers Balances |
Governmental activities: .
Capital assets not being depreciated: | !
tand $ 5002999 ¢ 17,809 % - $ 5,020,808 !
Construction in progress 536,535 1,613,421  {1,690,208) 509,748 .
Total capita) assels nat being deprediated 5,539,534 1,631,230 _ {1,640,208) 5,530,556 f
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings | 5,068,180 392,925 1,313,052 6,774,157 ,
Other improvements ' 234,377 117,083 316,788 668,248 i
Equipment 1,170,861 242,451 (24,892) 1,388,450 !
Vehides and matorized exuipment 4,764,083 717933 {132,837} 5,345,179 .
Total capital assets being depredated 11,237,501 1,470,922 1472111 14,180,034 :
Less accumulated depreciation for: '
Buildings 1,455,368 143,220 - 1,602,588 o
Other improvermnents 38,633 18,802 {10,369) 47,066 ' P
Equipment 593,139 148,530 (24,892) 716,777 :
Vehides and motorized equipment 2,493,731 562,025 (132,837) 2,922,919 _
Totat acounulated deprediation 4584871 §  B72577 § (M6B098) 5,789,350 i
Total capital assets being depredated, net 6,652,630 _ 8,850,684
Governmental activity capital assets, net $ 12,192,164 $ 14,421,240
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General Government 5 57,170
Public Safety _ 260,127
Public Works/Transportation 211,868
Erwironmental Protection 343412
Total Deprecation expense $ 872,577

Capital asset activities for the Business-type activities for the 1'j;ealr ended June 30, 2006 was as follows:

Beginning Decreases! Ending
Balances Increases  Transfers Balances

Business-type activities:
Enterprise Funds
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 204,205 % - % - % 204,205
Construction in Progress - 555,715 1,145370 (1,701,085} -
Total capital assets not being depreciated 759,920 1,145370 {(1,701,085) 204,205
Capital assets being depreciated:
Flant 4,263,911 151,343 1,508,985 5,624,239
Equipment 797,996 - 192,100 990,096
Vehicles 158,175 22,523 (35,837) 144 861
Intangibles 4,203,620 - - - 4,203,630
Total capital assets being depreciated 9,423,702 173,866 1,665248 11,262,816
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Plant 2,930,292 107,259 - 3,037,551
Equipment 379,648 35,077 - 414,725
Vehicles 84,252 19,687 (35,837) 68,102
Intangibles 1,590,885 106,786 - 1,697,671
Total accumulated depreciation 4985077 % 268,809 ¢ (35837) 5,218,049
Total capita! assets being depreciated, net 4,438,625 6,044,767
Fund capital assets, net 5,196,545 6,248,972
Business-type activities capital assets, ne § 5,198,545 $ 6248972
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The government has active construction projects as of June 30, 2006. At year-end, the government’s
estimated commitments to prejects ongoing are as follows:

Remaining
Project Spent-to-date Commitment
Beach MNourishment, construction oversight % 200,247 % 1,392,153
Harvey site access grant 299,050 14,785
Total 4 439,297 ¢ 1,406,938

B. Liabilities

1. Pension Plan Cbligations

a. Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System
Plan Description

The Town of Nags Head contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System
(LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension pian administered by the State of North
Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disahility benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Article 3
of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina
General Assembly. The Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR Includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by
writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mall Service Center, RalP.lgh North Carolina 27699-1410,
or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Poficy

Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary. The Town is required
to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the Town, the current rate for employees not engaged
in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers is 4.89% and 4.78%, respectively, of annuat covered
payroll. The contribution requirements of members and of the Town of Nags Head are established and
may be armended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The Town’s contributions to LGERS for the
years ended June 30, 2006, 2005, and 2004 were $240,884, 208,997, and $200,402, respectively. The
contributions made by the Town equaled the required contributions for each year.
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b. Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance

Flan Description

The Town of Nags Head administers a public employee retirement system (the “Separation Allowance™), a
single-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the Town’s qualified
sworn law enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance s equal to .85 percent of the annual
equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently appiicable to the officer for each year of
creditable service. The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement
allowances that may be authorized by the Generat Assembly. Article 120 of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly,

All full time Jaw enforcement officers of the Town are covered by the Separation Allowance, At December
31, 20085, the Separation Allowance’s membership consisted of:

Retirees receiving benefits 8]
Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 0
Active plan members 22
Total 22

A separate report was not issued for the plan.
Swnmnary of Significant Accotnting Folicies

Basts of Accounting. Financial statements for the Separation Allowance are prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting, Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and when the Town has
made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits are recognized when due and payable
in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Method Used to Value Investments. Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term debt, deposits,
repurchase agreements, and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust investments are reported at
cost or amortized cost, which approximates fair value. Certain longer term United States Government and
United States Agency securities are vaiued at the last reported sales price,

Coniributions

The Town is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has
chosen to fund the benefit payments on a pay as you go basis through appropriatiocns made in the General
Fund operating budget. The Town's obligation to contribute to this plan is established and may be
amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. There were no contributions made by employees.
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The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2005
actyarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions
included (a) 7.25% investment rate of return (het of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary
increases ranging from 4.5% to 12.3% per year. Item (b) included an inflation component of 3.75%. The
assumptions did not include post-employment benefit increases. The actuarial value of assets was
determined using the market value of investments. The unfunded actuarial acerued liabilities are being

amortized as a level dollar amount on a closed basis, The remaining amortization period at December 31,
2005 was 25 years.

Annusal Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation. The Town's annual pension cost and net pension
obligation to the Separation Allowance for the current year were as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 20,819
Interest on net pension chligation {410}
Adjustment to annual required contribution 375
Annual pension cost ' 20,734
Confributions made {28,886)
Inarease (decrcase) in net pension obligation {8, 152)
Net pension obligation beginning of year {5,653)
Met pension obligation end of year 13,805
3 Year Trend Information
For Year Ended  Annual Pension Cost Percentage of Net Pension
June 30 {APC) APC Contributed Obligation
2004 4 19,342 155.1% $ 7,225
2005 18,769 168.6% {5,653)
2006 20,734 139.3% {13,805)

¢. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers

Flan Description

The Town contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a defined contribution pension
plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan provides
retirernent benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the Town. Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135
assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly,

Funding Poficy

Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the Town to contribute each month an amount equal to five
percent of each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also, the Jaw
enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to the plan. Contributions for the year ended June

30, 2006 were $71,085, which consisted of $54,336 from the Town and $16,749 from the law enforcement
officers.
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d. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Non-Law Enforcement Officers

Planr Dascription

The Town adopted a Supplemental Retirement Income Plan, a defined contribution plan, for regular
employees beginning January 31, 1891,

Funding Policy

The Town contributes an amount equal ko three percent of each employee’s salary {excluding law
enforcement officers), and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Employees may also make
voluntary contributions {o the plan. Total contributions for the year ended June 30, 2005 were $216,361,
which consisted of $115,915 from the Town and $100,446 from emplayees.

&. Firemen’s and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund

Plan Descriplion

The State of North Carelina contributes, on behalf of the Town of Nags Head, to the Firemen's and Rescue
. Squad Workers' Pension Fund {Fund), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pensiocin plan with a
special funding situation administered by the State of North Carelina. The Fund provides pension benefits
for eligible fire and rescue squad workers that have elected to become members of the fund. Article 86 of
G.5. Chapter 58 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina
General Assembly. The Firemen’s and Rescue Squad Workers® Pension Fund is included in the _
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carclina. The State’s CAFR includes
financtal statements and required supplementary information for the Fund. That report may be obtained
by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Cacclina 27699-
1410, or by calling {919} 981-5454.

Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute $10 per month to the Fund. The State, a non-emplayer
contributor, funds the plan through appropriations. The Town contributes $10 per month on behalf of
each firefighter employed by the Town and each qualified member of the Nags Head Volunteer Fire
Department. The Town's contributions for the three years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were
$3,855, $3,740, and $5,392, respectively.

f. Other Post-employment Benefits

According to a Town resolution, the Town provides post-employment health care benefits to retirees of the
Tawn, provided they participate in the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System
(System) and have at least ten years of creditable service with the Town. The Town contributes towards
the cost of coverage for these benefits according to the following scale: ten years or more at 25%, fifteen
years ar more at 50%, twenty years or more at 75%, and twenty-five years or more at 100%. Also, the
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Town's retirees can purchase coverage for their dependents at the Town's group rates. Currently 7
retirees are eligible for post-employment heafth benefits. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, the
Town made payments for post-employment health benefit premiums of $27,355. The Town cbtains health
care coverage through private insurers.

The Town has also elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for
members of the Locai Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-
employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis, The beneficiaries
of those employees who die in active service after one year of contributing membership in the System, or
who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and have at least one year of
contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are eiigible for death benefits, Lump
sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee’s 12 highest months salary in a
row during the 24 months prior to the employee's death, but the benefit may not exceed $50,000 or be
less than $25,000. Al death benefit payments are made from the Death Bepefit Plan. The Town has no
liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. Contributions are determined as a percentage of
monthiy payroll, based upon rates established annually by the State. Separate rates are set for employees
not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers, Because the benefit payments are
made by the Death Benefit Plan and not by the Town, the Town does not determine the number of eligible
participants. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, the Town made contributions to the State for death
benefits of $4,993. The Town's required contributions for employees not engaged in faw enforcement and
for law enforcement officers represented .09% and .14% of covered payroll, respectively, The
contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the pest-employment benefit amount
and the other benefit amount.

2. Payables
Payables at Exhibit A at June 30, 2006 were as follows:

Safaries and  Accrued  Customer
Vendors Benefits Interest  Deposits Total

Governmental Activities

General $280,090 ¢ 90,488 $ - $109,855 $480,473
Beach Nourishment Fund 2,956 - - - 2,996
Total Governmental activities $ 283,086 % 90,488 ¢ - $109,895 $483,469

Business-type Activities
Water 120,814 6,654 384,461 511,929
Stormwater 20,949 - - - 20,949

Total Business-type activities $141,.763 $ 6,65¢ $ $384,461 $532,878
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3. Deferred / Unearned Revenues

The balance in defetred / Lnearned revenues at year-end is composed of the following elements:

Deferred Unearmed

Revenue Revenue
Prepaid taxes and privilege liocenses (General Fund) $ 44,403
Taxes and privilege ficenses receivable (General Fund) 24,274 -
Capital Lease for YMCA {General Fund) 2,047,000 -
Spedal assessment recejvable {General Fund) 595 -
Miscellanecus actounts receivable {General Fund) 523 -
Prepaid rent (Water Fund} - 31,152
Prepaid impact fees (Water Fund) - 226,000
Total $ 2072793 ¢ 301,555

4. Risk Management

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errars and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Town participates in self-
funded risk-financing pools administered by the North Caroling League of Municipalities. Through these
pools, the Town obtains general liability and auto liability coverage of $2 milllon per occurrence, property
coverage up to the total insurance values of the property policy, and workers’ compensation coverage up
to statutory limits. The pools are reinsured through commercial companies for single occurrence claims
against general liability, aute liability and property in excess of $500,000 and $300,000 up to statutory
limits for workers' cornpensation. The property liability pool has an aggregate Iimit for the total property
losses in a single year, with the reinsurance limit based upon a percentage of the total insurance values.

The Town carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There have been no significant
reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any
of the past three fiscal years.

5. Claims and Judgments

At June 30, 2006, the Town was a defendant to various lawsuits. In the opinion of the Town's
management and the Town attorney, the ultimate effect of these legal matters will not have a material

adverse effect on the Town's financial position.

6. Long-Term Debt,

a. Capital Leases and Installment Finance Contracts

The Town entered into a fifteen year installment financing contract in 1995 with First Union National Bank
of Morth Carolina for the construction of a 19,348 square feot municipal complex. The amount borrowed
was $2,400,000 at an interest rate of 4.80% and is secured by the property. Payments are dug in semi-
annual installments of $113,143 with final payment due December 15, 2010.
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The Town entered into a fifteen year installment financing contract in 2002 with Bank of America for the
construction of the YMCA building. The amount borrowad was $3,721,000 requiring repayment in
quarterly installments of varying amounts. The interest rate is variable and is calculated as 65% of
Londen Interbank Offering Rate (LIBOR) plus 1.14% per annum and is secured by the property and the
building. The Town has entered into an agreement to fease the property to the YMCA for the totat of the
amount due under the financing arrangement and has no financial responsibility beyond lease payments.
The Lease Agreement with the YMCA calls for payments in the amount of the debt to be made directly to
Bank of America as they become due. Should the YMCA default on the payments, the bank may take
possession of the property. The Town has the right in that case to purchase the property at 25% below
market value and take possession of the property by continuing to make the debt service payments.

The Town entered into a fifteen year installment financing contract in 2005 with RBC Centura for the

construction of the fire/police facility in south Nags Head. The amount borrowed was $1,600,000 at an

interest rate of 3.82% and is secured by the property. Originally payments were due in annua

installments of $106,666.67 plus accrued interest with final payment due on May 30, 2019. The Town

prepaid $125,068 during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2006 from unused escrow funds and the

remaining principal was reamortized with payments due in annual installments of $97,046 plus accrued
interest throtsgh May 17, 2019.

The Town entered into a fifteen year installment financing contract in 2005 with RBC Centura for the
construction of an above ground water storage tank and waterline extension located adiacent to the Public
Works facility. The amount borrowed was $1,200,000 at an interest rate of 3.85% and is secured by the
property. Originally payments were due in annual instaliments of $102,840.98 including accrued interest
with final payment due on May 30, 2015. The Town prepaid $85,871 during the fiscal year ending June
30, 2006 from unused escrow funds and the remaining principal was reamortized with payments due in
annual installments of $93,875 including accrued interest through May 17, 2019,

The Town currently has eight leases outstanding for various vehicdles and eguipment. Annual payments
range from $15,912 to $126,970. Expiration dates range from February 2007 to March 2010. Interest
rates vary from 2.42% to 4.44%.

The gross value of all assets recorded vnder capital leases and installment finance contracts is $7,094,919.
The following is an analysis of the assets recorded under capital leases and installment flnance contracts in
the Town's at June 30, 2006:

Classes of Property  Cost
Building $ 4,000,000
Yehicles and equiprment 3,094,219
Tetal $ 7054919
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A sﬁmmary of changes in the Governmental long-term debt follows;

Qutstanding Qutstanding Current
July 1, 2005 Increases  Decreases  June 30, 2006 Portion
BY TYPE OF DEBT
Finance Contract $5,007,866 ($793,151) $4,214,715 $610,032
Capital Leases 832,728 864,273  (562,770) 1,134,231 460,273
Compensated Absences 325,680 252,628 | (225,924) 356,384 252,628
6,170,274 1,116,901 (1,581,845) 5,705,330 1,322,933

A summary of changes in the Business type long-term debt follows:

Genesl General
Long-term Debt Long-term Debt  Current
July 1, 2005 InCreases Cecreases June 30, 2006 Portion
BY TYPE OF DEBT
Finance Contract $ 1,097,159 $ - $ (146471) $ 950,688 ¢ 61,950
Capital Leases : 224,622 21,868 (78,388) 168,105 74,636
Compensated Absences 29,986 27,571 {25579} 31,478 27,51

$ 1351268 $ 49439 $ (250436) $ 1150271 % 164,157

b. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Compensated absences have been liquidated in the General Fund as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2005 Earned Used July 1, 2005
General Fund
General Government % 83,803 % 62,550 % 54609 % 01,744
Public Safety 164,200 127,822 110,127 181,895
Fublic Warks/Transportation 53,082 22,348 22,118 28,815
Environmental Protection 28,585 39,908 39,070 53,930

§ 329680 § 252,628 $ 225924 $ 356,384

Proprietary Fund 3 29486 & 272571 4 25,579 % 31,478

45




Town of Nags Head, North Carolina -
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006 ! '

A summary of General government debt service obligations is as follows: I

Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest i

|
2007 $ 1,07M305 § 356,559
2008 ' 923,256 290,631
2009 748,635 233,651
2010 617,843 187,041
2011 398,536 146,027
2012 - 2015 1,725,233 388,715
2017 - 2019 365,138 25,573

Total $ 5,348,946 $ 1,628,197 . ;

A summary of Business-type debt service obligations is as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Principai Interest

|
2007 4 136,586 ¢ 42,912
2008 117,153 37,360 |
2000 07,528 33,1% i
2016 4,340 29,534 '
2011 05,819 27057 : :
2012 - 2016 374,713 94,660 !
2017 - 2019 261,254 20,370 :
Total $ 1,118,793 3 285,047

Amaortization of assets acquired under capital leases in Enterprise Funds is included in depreciation. At
June 30, 2006 the Town of Nags Head, North Cardlina, has a legal debt margin of $231,210,468.

7. Operating Leases
The Town entered into an cperating lease for the lease of six copiers effective November 19, 2004 for a .
period of 60 months, The iease calls for minimum monthiy rental payments and per copy maintenance P

charges based on actual usage.

Total minimum lease payments for the remaining term of the contract at June 30, 2006, are as follows:

2007 $ 6,808
2008 6,808
2009 6,808
2010 2,269
Total $ 22,693
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During the year ended June 30, 2006, the total amount expended by the Town under the above operating
lease was $8,327 including both minimum menthly rentals and per copy charges.

Under a separate lease agreement effective July 31, 2003, the Town leases one copler for a period of 60
months in the amount of $213 per month plus monthly copy charges of $115 per menth which includes up
to 11,500 coples. Copies in excess of that amount are additionali.

Total minirmum Jease 'payments for the remaining term of the contract at June 30, 2006, are as follows:

2007 $ 3933
2008 bSb
Total 4,589

During the year ended June 30, 2006, the total amount ex}iendéd by the Town under the above operating
lease was $3,972 including both minimum monthly rentals and overage per copy charges.

The Town assisted the Outer Banks Family YMCA in obtaining tax exempt financing for the YMCA property
located within the Town of Nags Head. The Town acquired title to the YMCA property and borrowed funds
from the Bank of America in the amount of $3,721,000. The terms of the 'oan call for varying quarterly
principal payments over fifteen years with interest determined quarterly as 65% of London Interbank
Offering Rate (LIBOR) plus 1.14% per annum. The Town has entered into an agreement to lease the
property to the YMCA for the total of the amount due under the financing arrangement and has no
financial responsibility beyond lease payments. The total payments received under this operating lease for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 were $474,745 and the payments made were $385,000 in principal

and $86,745 in interest.

8. Interfund Balances and Activity

The balance sheet for Government Funds shows a liability in the General Fungd of $201,773 and a
corresponding receivabie in the Capital Reserve Fund. The original advance amount of $438,481
represents reimbursement of funds collected in the Capital Reserve Fund originally intended to offset the
cost of the municipal complex. Instead these funds were used to pay off the higher interest rate Fire
Station debt. This amount is to be paid back from the General Fund te the Capital Reserve Fund with fire
facility fee revenues. The amounts and timing of the repayments will be determined by availability of
collected fees and decided by the Board of Commissioners. During the current year, repayment was made

in the amount of $16,427.
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Transfers to/from other funds for the year ended June 30, 2006 consisted of the following:

From the General Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund

for future capital purchases & 146,497
From the General Fund to the Storm Water Fund

for funding start up costs 100,060
From the General Fund to the Beach Nourishment

Capital Project fund for capital purchases. 700,000
From the Capital Reserve Fund to the General Fund

for current year capital purchases 421,632

Total 3 1,368,129

9. On-Behalf of Payments for Fringe Benefits and Salaries

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, the Town has recognized on-behalf payments for pension
contributions made by the State as a revenue and an expenditure of $15,848 for the 71 volunteer firemen
who perfarm fire fighting duties for the Town’s fire department and on-behalf payments of $15,848 as a
revenue and an expenditure. The volunteers and employees elected to be members of the Firemen and
Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund, a cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement
system established and administered by the State of North Carolina. The plan is funded by a $10 monthly
contribution paid by each member, investment income, and State apprepriation.

II1. Joint Ventures

The Town and the members of the Town's fire department each appaint two members to the five-member
local board of trustees for the Firemen's Relief Fund. The State Insurance Commissloner appoints one
additional member to the local board of trustees. The Firemen's Relief Fund is funded by a portion of the
fire and iightening insurance premiums that insurers remit t¢ the State, The State passes these moneys to
the local board of the Firemen’s Refief Fund. The funds are used to assist fire fighters in various ways.
The partiicipating governments do not have any equity interest in the joint venture, so no equity has been
reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2006. The Firemen’s Relief Fund does not issue separate
audited financial statements, Instead, the local board of trustees files an annual financial report with the
State Firemen’s Association. This report can be obtained from the Association at Post Office Box 188,
Farmmville, NC 27828.
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IV. Related Party Transactions

State statute prohibits transactions between a municipality and its elected officials. The state excludes any
municipality with a population of less than 15,000, but limits the dollar value of all transactions within a
twelve-month period to $25,000 per elected official. In compliance with the restrictions of this statute, the
following is a listing of all elected officials who transacted business with the Town, During the fiscal period
ending June 30, 2006, the aggregate dollar value of such transactions is as follows:

Brant Murray (Murray Auto Supply} $ 12,590

V. Summary Disclosure of Commitments and Contingencies
A. Federal and State Assisted Programs

The Town has received preceeds from several federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these grants are
required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant
agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant maneys to the grantor agencies.

Management believes that any reguired refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in the
accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant moneys.

B. Jennette’s Pier

During the year ending June 30, 2003 the Town agreed conceptually to participate in the acquisition by
The Morth Carolina Aquarium Society of the Jennette’s Pier property by making a one time contribution of
$300,000, based on a mutually agreed to Memorandum of Understanding between and among various
agencies of North Carolina State Government, Dare County and The Town of Nags Head, This was
recorded as a payable at that time. As of October 7, 2005 a Memarandum of Understanding was entered
into between The Town, Dare County, the North Carolina Aquarium Society, The North Carolina
Aquariums, and the Clean Water Management Trust and payment of the $300,000 was made to Clean
Water Management Trust at that time.

C. Municipal Waste Management Agreement

On December 23, 1993, the Town entered into @ Municipal Waste Management Agreement with Dare
County, a member of the Albeimarle Regional Solid Waste Authority, for disposal of solid waste. The
contract extends for twenty years. Charges are based on the Town's actual tonnage of solid waste; the
rate in effect in the 2005 - 2006 year was $59.04 per ton.

49




Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

D. Volunteer Fire Department Agreement

The Board of Commissioners maintains an agreement with the Nags Head Volunteer Fire Department
(NHVFD} that calls for incentive pay based on an individual members qualifications and call response. .
Billing for the incentive is based on the twelve-month period of November through October each year.
Under the agreement, it is the abligation of NHVFD to provide an accurate accounting of the incentive
earned at various intervals during the year including the Town'’s fiscal year end. The amount expended
under this agreement in the current fiscal year was $19,682. The method of calculation of incentive pay
was amended by the Board of Commissioners during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2006 as was the
“twelve month period for calculation to coincide with the Town's fiscal year from July through June. The
amount expended under this agreement for the partial year of December 2005 through June 2006 was

$2,750.
E. Intangible Water Rights

The Town entered into an agreement with Dare County and the Town of Kill Devil Hills to construct a
reverse osmosis (R.0.) water desalination plant. Under this agreement, the Town agrees to fund the
capital cost of the R.O. project on a pro rata basis as related to the water capacities allocated to each of
the three parties. The Town's total original cost was $3,614,000. Subsequent costs of $589,620 were
Incurred for the Town’s share of additional projects including well field expansions. The Town has the
right to water produced from the R.Q, plant. Presently, the Town's share is 1,000,000 gailons per day.

The intangible water rights are being amortized over 40 years. This time period corresponds to the
estimated useful life of the R.O. water desalination plant. At June 30, 2006, accumulated amortization
totaled $1,697,671.

On August 21, 1996, the Town approved a revised agreement with Dare County and the Town of Kill Devil
Hills which allocates three million five hundred thousand gallons per day of water from the system
capacity, inclusive of expansions. Nags Head will bear all costs and expenses associated with expansions
requested or required by the Town. This agreement was signed on October 4, 1996,

F. Fresh Pond Dperations

As part of the agreement with Dare County and the Town of Kill Devit Hills, the Town of Nags Head
operates the Fresh Pond surface water facility for the regional system. The terms of the agreement require
the Town to provide an annual accounting to the Regional Water System and to settle any difference in
water revenues and expenses. Pursuant to the Regional Water System agreement, Fresh Pond Capital as
of June 1996 is to be used for capital expenditures of Fresh Pond. After this amount is exhausted, Dare
County, Kill Devil Hills and the Town will share in capital expenditures evenly. All funds previousky set
aside for capital expenditures under this agreement have been expended as of June 30, 2006. In the case
of capital expenditures in excess of $100,000, each entity must agree to fund their share or accept a
reduction in their allocation from the Fresh Pond water supply. During the fiscal year ending June 30,2006
the Town received $133,121 from the Regional Water System in reimbursement of excess operating costs
from the prior fiscal year and an additional $58,583 from both Dare County and Kill Devil Hills for their
share of Fresh Pond capital expenditures,
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G. Water Impact Fees

The Town entered into a letter of understanding with the Ammons-Dare Corparation {its successors and
assigns) for the provision of water to the Village of Nags Head Development, The Town guarantees 1,000
water consumption units (WCU) will be available for the development. Ammens-Dare Corporation has
agreed to pay an impact fee of $2,000 per WCU in advance in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit in
the amount of $2,000,000. As of June 30, 2006, draws in the amount of $2,000,000 have been made by
the Town on this letter of credit, and Ammons-Dare Carporation has utilized 651 WCU's which are
guaranteed by the Town and are valued at $1,382,000. The Town reimbursed Ammons-Dare Corporation
for 100 unused WCU's in the amount of $200,000 during the fiscal year ending June 30, 1992, 50 unused
WCU's in the amount of $100,000 during the fiscal year ending June 3¢, 1993, 15 units in the amount of
$30,000 during the fiscal year ending June 30, 1995, and 31 units in the amount of $62,000 in the year
ended June 30, 1996. The remaining 113 WCU's in the amount of $226,000 represent the balance due
under the letter of understanding and are included in the Water Fund balance sheet as unearned revente.
Should any of the remaining WCU's be unused, the Town agrees to reimburse Ammons-Dare Corporation,

its successors and assigns, at any time after September 4, 1991.
H. Facility Fees

The Town enacted a Faclity Fee ordinance on July 3, 1989. Facility fees are imposed on new development
or canstruction requiring a building permit. These fees will be used to fund capital expenditures
associated with increased Police, Fire, Administration, and Soli¢ Waste Collection Services necessitated by
new development. A fee for Recreation Facilities was added effective January 1, 2000. The facility fees are
deposited in a separate interest-bearing account. The interest earned shall be used solely for purposes

specified in the account.

For the year ended June 30, 2006, the following Facility Fee Revenue (including interest) was collected in
the General Fund:

Administration % 24,395
Fire 14,920
Pdlice 20,474
Sanitation 13,677
Recreation 23,030

Total $ 96,496

Facility fees are to be spent for capital expenditures within ten years of collection of the fees. In the event
that the funds are unexpended, the Town is obligated to refund the fees to the eligible property owner
after the ten-year period expires.

At June 30, 2006, the facility fees were transferred to the Capital Reserve Fund where they will remain
until funds are needed for apprapriate capital expenditures.
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During the year ended June 30, 2006, administration facility fees in the amount of $31,500 and police
facility fees in the amount of $13,500 were used toward the municipal complex debt. Palice facility fees of
$11,698 were used for a portion of new police vehicle debt. Fire facility fees of $16,427 were used toward
the interfund loan used to satisfy the previous fire station debt. There was $36,716 in sanitation facility
fees used toward the debt for new equipment. Lastly, $25,000 for recreation facility fees were used
toward the YMCA skateboard park and an additional $27,000 for partial funding of impraovements to the
Harvey site soundside access. '

As of June 30, 2006, the following balances of facility fees remained, and are included in the Capital
Reserve Fund:

Administration $ 159,558
Fire 60,146
Pclice 185,101
Sanitation 9,286
Recreation 17,518

Total $ 431,609

The following schedule summarizes facility fees collected and used from the inception of the fees to date:

Facility Fees Collected (inclusive of interest):

Admin. Fire Folice Sanitation  Recreation Total
FY 83-90 $ 29114 4% 19035 ¢ 7179 & 16548 3§ - % 71,876
FY 9381 17,704 15,761 6,293 10,194 - 43,052
Fy 91-92 24,115 27,158 11,204 15,236 . 71,714
FY 92-93 24,392 16,237 6,509 12,473 - 59,611
FY 93-94 23,758 24,740 10,317 12,476 - 71,291
FY 94-95 25,500 27,202 11,743 17,074 - 81,984
FY 9596 28,330 28,125 12,570 15 832 - BB 857
FY 96-97 22,811 11,659 5322 9,682 - 49,514
FY 97-98 34,008 15,243 15,749 10,406 - 75,407
Fy 98-39 45,061 23,584 28,535 19,367 - 116,547
FY 94-00 4L 953 31,970 43,067 24,461 14,473 159,924
FY 00-01 64,457 66,526 102,658 47,078 41,911 322,630
FY 01-02 64,532 34,245 43,293 30,466 42,338 214,874
FY 02-03 63,155 36,834 50,102 33,571 38,719 222,381
Fr 03-04 39,368 16,606 18,221 10,105 28,633 112,937
FY 04-05 33,300 45 226 75,807 23,782 23,479 201,594
FY 05-06 24,395 14,5920 20,474 13,677 23,030 96,456

Total $ 610419 $ 455112 § 469043 § 326432 § 212583 ¢ 2,073,585
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Facility Fees Used:

Admin. Fire Police  Sanitation  Recreation Total
FY 82-%) '
FY 90-91
Y9192 4 - $ 30000 $ - 4§ 20,000 $ - 4 50,000
FY 92-93 ' - - 6,520 - - 6,520
FY 93-94 - 26,297 4,097 - - 30,314
FY 94-95 - 26,247 4097 - - 30,344
FY 95-96 - 75,765 - - 75,765
F¥ 96-97 160,000 - 40,000 5,000 - 205,000
- F¥ 97-98 10,000 - 5,000 5,000 - 20,000
Fy 98-99 35,000 - 16,120 - - 51,120
FY¥ 99-00 31,500 26,542 28,434 18,864 - 105,740
FY 00-01 I,500 23584 13500 19,818 7,065 95,467
FY 01-02 3,500 31,970 48227 7,677 44,000 227374
FY 02-03 31,500 66,526 13,500 36,716 25,000 173,242
Fr 034 56,8601 40,591 60,601 £0,59% 42,000 251;052
FY 04-05 31,500 30,667 18,648 £2,356 25,000 158,171
FY 05-06 31,500 16,427 25198 . 36,716 52,000 161,841
Total 450,861 394,566 283,942 317,146 195,065 1,641,980

Remaining § 159558 ¢ 60,146 $ 18510t ¢ 9286 § 17518 § 431,609

I. Hurricane Recovery

The Town of Nags Head enterad into agreements to complete infrastructure repairs/replacements
necessitated by Hurricane Isabel in September 2003. As of June 30, 2005, all contracts for the emergency
berm project, the road repair project and the beach emergency berm project had been completed. The
amount remaining te be reimbursed from FEMA at June 30, 2005 was $2,392,554. Of that amount
41,196,652 has been reflected as a receivable and deferred revenue as of June 30, 2005, The remaining
$1,195,902 was the amount expended in excess of the original project worksheet and is subject to
approval by FEMA as part of the final inspection currently expected in December 2005, As of June 30,
2006 the Town had received $2,171,809 including $60,169 in reimbursement of administrative costs. The
remaining $280,914 represents the costs of sprigging the emergency berm and was initially denied by
FEMA, The Town has appealed this decision. The costs were reported as expenditures in the year
incurred and no receivable or revenue has been recorded by the Town related to reimbursement of these

costs,
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J. Beach Nourishment

On November 2, 2005, the Tewn adapted a capital project ordinance for Beach Nourishment with an
estimated cost of $27,697,850 to be funded by bond proceeds in the amount of $26,997,850 and a
contribution froem the General Fund in the amount of $700,000, The initial phase of that project is a
contract for the engineering and construction aversight in the amount of $1,592,500. The contract allows
for cancellation at any time by either party upen payment of costs incurred through the date of
cancellation. The project will require a bond referendum and approvat by the Town's voters for the
funding of the project which is anticipated for November 2006. Should the referandum not be approved it
is the intent of the Board to fund costs incurred through that date from the General Fund Undesignated
Fund Balance. The total amount expended under this contract at June 30, 2006 was $200,347.




Town of Nags Head, North Carolina

Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Funding Progress

Schedule A-1

Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Actuarial Liability {AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a
Valuation Value of -Projected Unit AAL ~ Funded Covered %o of Covered

Date Assets Credit {UAAL) Ratip Payroll Payroll

(a) (b- a) (a/b) -{c) [(b-a)/c]
12/31/1996 3 45,607 % 56,434 § 0,807 B2.62% ¢ 553,649 1.77%
12/31/1997 449,502 &6,480 15,978 74.46% 571,738 2.97%
12/31/1998 62,331 83,495 21,164  1.65% 656,523 3.22%
124311999 71,819 81,751 5,032 87.85% 579,505 1.71%
1273172000 88,268 145,789 57,521 60.55% 573,137 8.55%
12731724001 20,229 178,317 88,088 50.60% - 771,135 11.42%
1273172002 o0,891 182,538 01,647 49.79% 815,534 11.24%
1243172003 151,541 212,074 60,533  71.46% G15,380 b.61%
12/31/2004 184,675 250,217 65,542 73.81% 1,026,938 G, 38%
12431742005 217,715 241,698 23,983  90.08% 1,021,727 2.350%%
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Schedule A-2

Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required
June 30 Contribution
1996 3 4,113
1997 5,310
1998 7,398
1999 8,503
2000 10,300
2001 8,148
2002 15,773
2003 18,854
2004 17,883
2005 7,225
2006 (5,653}

Percentage
Contributed

100.00%
100.00%
82.62%
74.46%
74.65%
87.85%
60.55%
50.60%
4%, 79%
71.46%
73.81%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The infermation presented in the required supplementary schedules
was determined as part of the actuarial valuations at the dates
indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial

valuation follows,

Valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Amottization method

Remaining amortization period

Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return
Projected salary increases #
* Includes inflation at

Cost-of-living adjustments

Sb

12/31/2005

Projected unit credit

Level percent of pay closed
25 years

Market value

1.25%
4.5-12.3%
3.75%

N/A
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TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA Page 1 of 11
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2006
Variance
Over
Budget Actual {Under)
REVENUES
Ad Valorem Taxes:
Current year t 4,333,326
Prior year 1,589
DMV current year 97,561
DMV prior year {583}
Penalties and interest B,833
. Total 4,331,636 4,440,726 109,090
Other Taxes and Licenses:
Cccupancy tax 1,650,845
Land Transfer tax 1,053,725
Local governmental sales tax 055,163
1/2% sales tax revenue 730,928
Privilege licenses 40,308
Mixed beverage tax 39,804
Privilege license penalties 327
Total 4,495,000 4,471,101 (23,899)
Intergovernmental Revenues:
Uinrastricted:
Utility/ Telecommunications Franchlse tax 313,140
Beer and wine 13,666
ABC revenue 13,451
Total 336,500 340,257 3,757
Restricted:
FEMA Reimbursement 2,177,301
Contributions from governmental units 52,440
State Street Ald allocation 134,348
DCM Grant 155,604
Drug Fund revenue 12,71%
0.B. Visitors Bureau Grant {Local Funds) 64,633
CAMA Reimbursement 4,155
Total 2,912,875 2.601.200 {311,675)
Total Intergovernmental Revenues 3,249,375 2,941,457 {307,9183)
Permits and Fees:
Building permits 258,312
Facility fees 0g,497
Inspection and review feas 78,384
Cable franchise fees 47,648




TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Schedule 3,
Page 2 of 11

Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Beach driving permits
CAMA permits
Motor vehicle licenses

Total

Special Assessments:
Pond Island Froject

Total

Sales and Services:
Court costs and fees

Total
Investment Earnings

Cther Revenues:

YMCA Rents

Sale of materials

Miscellaneous

Sale of assets

Damage recovery

Civil Penalties

Contributions to Patice, Fire &
Rescue Benevolent Fund

Total
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

General Government:

Governing Body;

Fees paid to elected officials

FICA expense

Contracted services

Contracted services - beach nourishment
Professional Fees

Capital autlay, art

Department supplies and materials
Dues and subscriptions

Printing

Travel

Telephone

58

Budget

Actual

Variance

QOver
{Undar)

577,150

11,552
11,500
192

504,085

(73,065}

500

7,000

429

459

2041

—_— F

9,041

(1)

2,041

232,000

351,226

119,226

841,795

506,745
32,233
61,941
23,469
22,314

2,143

15,848

664,693

(177,102

13,734,456

13,382,828

(351,628)

26,443
2,023
70,802
88,824
5,800
6,634
6,395
3,717
3,200
3,980
358




Schedule 1

TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA Page 3 of 11
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Dudget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2006
Variance
Over
Budget Actual {Under)
Training 1,260
Equipment rental 286
Employee incentive 250
Contribution to YMCA - Skatehaord Park . 25,000
Contribution to Nags Head Woods 14,000
Contribution to Community Care Clinic 10,000
Cantribution to Jockey's Ridge State Park 10,000
Contribution to the Dept. of the Interior 10,000
Contribution to Wright Flight 5,000
Contribution OB History 1,000
Contribution to OB Chamber 714
Contributions, miscellaneous 15,100
Total 338,275 310,886 27,389
Special Projects:
¥YMCA principal passthrowgh 385,000
YMCA interest passthrough 86,745
Total 653,080 471,745 181,335
Administration:
Salaries and wages 229,213
FICA expense 16,755
Group insurance 35,944
Group insurance - retiree 4,990
Retirement 10,205
4G1{k) account 6,691
Contracted services 17,085
Travel 8,292
Advertising 5,494
Departrmental supplies 11,588
Dues and subscriptions 2,706
Equipment rental 3,972
Telephone 2,981
Employes training 2,689
Postage 651 -
Career development 2,283
Repairs and maintenance, equipment 217
Other supplies 1,513
Reimburserment from Water Fund (71,124}
Taotal 345,514 296,845 48,669
Administrative Services:
Salaries and wages 368,842
FICA expense 26,657
Group Insurance expense 58,760
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TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Schedule 1
Paged of 11

Butlget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Retirement

401(k) account

Unemployment expense
Insurance

Contracted services

Empleyee training

Professional services
Deparimental supplies and materials
Postage

Telephane

Travel

Other supplies

Equipment rental

Printing

Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Career development

Wellness program

Persannel Committee

Special contracted services

Dues and subscriptions

Purchases for resale

Internet costs

Advertising

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Automotive supplies
Reimbursement from Water Fund
Capital outlay, equipment

Debt servica, capital lease

Debt service, interest

Total

Planning and Bevelopment:
Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance

Group insurance - retiree
Retirement

401(k) account

Planning board, board of adjustment
Contracted services

Professional services
Departmental supplies

Travel

Advertising

Telephone

Fostage

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles

ol

Budget Actual

Variance
Over
{Under)

16,713
10,254
26,439
242,905
91,598
1,912
26,516
24,575
10,371
12,638
5,918
11,569
12,542
7,408
4,102
3,549

2,457
1,187
1,631
735
2,758
670
171
468
(212,035)
15,394
176,416

49,870

1,348,000 1,002,920

345,010

524,555
38,709
77,609

3,743
25,630
15,725

9,660

1,018
18,316

9,456

3,663

6,089

4,850

3,003

702




Schedule 1

TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA Page 5 of 11
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2006
Variance
Over
Budget Actual {Under)
Repairs and maintenance, equipment 2,603
Other supplies 6,274
Uniforms 1,459
Autornotive supplies 4,179
Employee training 2,264
Equipment rental 1,680
Dues and subscriptions 2,254
Printing 1,015
Land Use Plan Grant 40,870
Reimbursement from Water Fund {35,272)
Capital outlay, DCM Curlew Access B1,806
Capital outtay, DCM Harvey site 293,177
Capital outlfay, cemetery 3,849
Capital cutlay, equipment 23,501
Debt service, capital [ease 7,877
Debt service, interest -
Total 1,513,621 1,181,304 332,317
Legal Services:
Professional services 72,094
Reimbursement frorm Water Fund (2,230)
Total 75,770 69,814 5,956
Total General Government 4,274,260 3,333,584 940,676
Public Safety:
Palice Department:
Salaries and wages -1,090,926
FICA expense 81,037
Group insurance 179,017
Group insurance - retiree 1,057
Retirerment 52,269
401(k) account 52,976
Separation allowance 26,886
Automotive supplies 54,198
Departmental supplies 34,770
Repairs and maintenance, vehicles 12,089
Repairs and maintenance, equipment 22,945
Telephone 13,870
Other supples 5,460
Uniforms 13,238
Career development B,207
Equipment rental 10,230
Travel 6,861
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TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Schedule 1
Page 6 of 11

Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Professional services

Employee training

Special investigations

Repairs and maintenance, range
Postage

Dues and subseriptions
Advertising

Contracted services

Grant, Governor's Highway Safety
Reimbursement from Water Fund
Capital outlay, equipment

Capital outlay, Governor's Crime Comimission
Capital outlay, CJIN Grant

Debt service, capital lease

Debt service, interest

Total

Drug Forfeiture:
Department supplies
Capital cutlay, NC GHSP Grant

Tatal

Fire Dapartrent:
Salaries and wages

FiCA expense

Group insurance

Group insurance - retiree
Retirement expense

401 (k) accounk
Departmental supplies
Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Uniforms

Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Autarmotive supplies
Telephone

Employee training

0SHA Compliance
Career development
Travel

Safety training

Other supplies
Equipment rental

Cues and subscriptions
Professional services
Fostage

62

Budget Actual

Variance
Over
{Under)

8,789
2,862
3,588
761
1,402
1,300
750
400

(12,183)
85,419
50,000

118,413
3,495

2,120,464 1,933,041

187,423

25,210

10,323

36,027 35,533

194

1,025,437
74,860
194,952

98

52,254
30,764
97,566
49,523
18,347
13,775
14,255
4,391
6,004
5,747
5,043
6,417
10,747
7,795
2,307
1,600
8,478
504



TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Schedule'1
Page 7 of 11

Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Contracted Services

Printing

Advertising

Grant, NCLM Safety

Capital outlay, FEMA fire grant
Capital outlay, equipment
Debt service, capital lease
Debl service, interest

Total

Volunteer. Fire:

Incentive pay

Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Training

Travel]

Professional services

Retirement

Bepartment supplies

Total

Ocean Rescue:

Salaries and wages

FICA expense
Group.insurance

Retirement expense

401(k) account
Departmental supplies
Unifarms

Automotive supplies

Repairs and malntenance, equipment
Travel '
Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Professional fees

Telephone

Employee training

Printing

Dues and subscriptions
Advertising

Postage

Capital cutlay, equipment
Debt service, capital lease
Debt service, interest

Total

Budget

Actual

Varlance
Over
(Under}

2,163,285

1,016
365

330

15,434
303,075

61,706

2,012,790

150,499

49,206

22,432
120
255
797

3,422

17,593

9,411

54,050

{4,884)

598,550

362,546
19,221
5,066
2,157
1,320
29,483
10,994
7,905
5,129
3,889
680
936
1,599
720
390
1,050
672

45
37,582
21,684
291

513,359

85,191
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TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actiual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Animal Control;

Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance

Group insurance - retireg
Retirernent

401(k) account
Automotive supplies
Deparimental supplies
Career development
Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Professional fees
Equipment rental
Employee training

Travel

Telephone

Uniforms

Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Printing

Debt service, capital lease
Debt service, interest

Tatal
Total Public Safety

Environmental Protection:
Sapitation:

Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance

Retirement

401{k) account

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Automotive supplies

Department supplies

Unifarms

Contracted services

Recycling

Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Professional Feas

Travel

Employee training

Postage

Advertising

Dues and subscriptions

64

Budget Actual

Schedule 1
Page 8of 11

Variance
Over
{Under)

43,342
3,144
8,493

2,072
2,167
3,113

870

436
285
. 254

162
371
1,178
29
220

73,644 66,131

5,041,180 4,614,944

7513

426,236

404,002
29,919
80,771
18,504
11,598

118,889

74,572
26,513
6,325
11,093
4,673
10,860
437
1,606
300
318
385




TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA

Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Capital outlay, equipment
Capital cutlay, ather

Debt service, capital lease
Debt service, interest

Total

Sofid Waste:
Tipping fees

Total

Total Environmental Protection

Public Works:

Adminlstration:

Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance

@roup insurance - retires
Retirement

401k} account

Caontracted services

Purchase for resale

Telephone

Departmentai supplies

Dther supplies

Advertising

Travel

Equipment rental

Automotive supplies

Employee training

Career development

Dues and subscriptions

Postage

Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Repalrs and maintenance, vehicles
Uniforms :
Professional fees
Reimbursement from Water Fund
Capital outlay, equipment

Debt service, capital lease

Debt service, interest

Total

&5

Budget

Actuat

Schedule 1
Page 9 of 11

Variance

Over

{Under)

1,665,789

529,266
3,987
768,538

15,522

1618,478

47,311

590,000

580,445

- -y =

580,449

9,551

2,255,785

2,198,927

56,862

301,400

167,350
12,112
27,264

4,681
8,171
5,013
1,490
31,915
6,595
3,014
58%
525
339
1,654
B8O
205
1,729
666
534
897
233
367
2,789

(87,745)
24,815

8,317

229,695

71,701




TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA

- Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Schedule 1
Page 10 of 11

Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Public Facilities Maintenance;
Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance

Retirement

401{k} account

Special Projects - FEMA

Special Projects

Repairs and maintenance, Facilities
Ltilities

Contracted services

Department supplies

Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Signs

Automative supplies

Repairs and maintenance, other
Career development

Other supplies

Professional services

Unifarms

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Employee training

Travel

Street supplies

Advertising

Bues and subscriptions

Beach driving

Reimbursement from Water Fund
Capital cutlay, Albatross grant
Capital outlay, Barnes grant
Capital cutlay, land

Capital outlay, building

Capital outlay, OBMC building
Capital outlay, other

Capital outlay, equipment

Capital outlay, other Powell Bill
Debt service, capital lease

Debt service, interest

Total

46

Budget

Actual

Variance

Over
{Under)

4,865,107

368,370
27,020
84,125
17,450
10,705

59,479
150,268
33,523
21,178
24,884
9,123
17,857
4,238
2,423
12,707
11,057
5,613
2,640
1,240
2,392
14,982
49
35
389
(45,927)
30,090
25,360
17,809
1,204,375

57,017
126,164
259,301

66,604

3,017

2,625,657

239,550




TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Maintenance Garage:

Salaries and wages

FICA account

Group insurance

(Group insurance, retiree
Retirement

401(k) account

QOther supplies

Departmental supplies

Uniforms

Contracted services

Auvtomotive supplies

Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Employee training

Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Travel

Advertising

Professional fees

Relmburserment from Water Fund

Total

Tatal Public Works

CIP
Cantingency

Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Socurces (Uses):
Proceeds from capital [ease

Operating transfers to Capital Projects Funds (Net)
Qperating transfer to Storm Water Fund

Appropriated Fund Balance

Other financing sources {uses), net

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

FUNE BALANCE, beginning

FUND BALANCE, ending

Schedule 1
Page 11 of 11

8,334,402

$ 8826552

Variahce
Over
Budget Actual {Under)
146,152
10,764
35,619
4,990
7,147
4,385
7,760
11,656
4,207
550
989
133
145
184
218
670
250
[8,484)
259,048 227,375 31,673
3,425,555 3,082,611 342,924
5,269 - 5,269
15,158 - 15,158
15,017,211 13,230,086 1,787,125
{1,282,755) 152,742 1,435,457
864,273 864,273 -
(433,068) {424,865) 8,203
(10Q0,000) {100,000)
951,550 - {951,550)
1,282,755 339,408 {943,347)
$ - 452,150 § 492,150



TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA
- Beach Nourishment Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Revenues
Investment Barnings

Totai revenues

Expendituras
Capital Construction Oversight
Pumping Costs
Mobilization
Cantingency
Other Costs

Total Expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):
Loan Proceeds
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Appropriated fund balance

Total other financing sources {uses)

Revenues and other sources
over expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Schedule 2

Actuai Varlance
Project Current Total to Over
Authorization Year Date {Under)
$ 1478 3 1,478 $ 1,478
1,478 1,478 1,478
1,592,500 200,347 200,347 1,392,153
22,000,000 - 23,000,000
1,500,000 - 1,500,000
905,350 - 905,330
700,000 - 200,000
27,697 850 200,347 200,347 27,497,503
(27,697,B50) {198,869) {198,569) 27,498,981
26,597,850 -
70,000 200,000 700,000 -
27,657 850 700,000 700,000 {26,597.850)
3 - 01,131 ¢ 501,131 $ 501131
$ 501,131
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Town of Nags Head, North Carolina

Water Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

REVENLUES

Operating Revenues;

Water saftes

Contribukion to Fresh Pond

Charges tc other governmental units, Dare County
Rants

FEMA

Tap and connection fees

Late payment penalties and Interest
Water cutoff tag fees

Damage recovety

DREHNR grant

Miscellaneous

Total

Non-Operating Revenues:
Interest earnad on investments
Impact fees

Decrease in prepaid impact fees

Total

Total Revenues

EXPENDITLIRES

Administration:

Salaries and wages

FICA expense

Group insurance

Group insurance - retirees
Retirement expense

401{k) account

Reimburse General Fund administrative expenses
Contracted services

Postage

Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Supplies and materfzls

Employee training

Traval

Tatal Administration

Zeptic Health:
Lalaries and wages
FICA expense
Group Insurance
Retirement

Budget

2,619,869

108,000

2,727,865

182,417

3!

Actual

$ 2,076,403
250,287
73,876

59,104

323

23,405

18,111

10,872

1,241

300

2,388

2,556,310

179,260
287,000

{32,000)

434,260

2,990,570

46,543
3,251
15,307
2,495
2,271
1,394
61,880
32,875
7,407

2,115

146,538

40,345
2,903
7,955
1,948

Schedule 3
Pagelof 4

Variance
Over

{Under})

(63,559)

326,260

262,701

35,879




Town of Nags Head, North Carplina

Water Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

Budget and Actual {Non-GAAP) For the Fiscal Year Ended Juna 30, 2006

Budget
401(k} account
Contracted services
Reimburse General Fund administrative expenses
Inspection rebates
Fumping credits
Professional fees
Postage
Travel
Advertising
Telephone
Printing
Employes training
Automotive supplies
Career Development
Repairs and maintenance, vehicles
Cepartmental supplies
Dues and subscriptions

Total Septic Health 500,885

Operations:
Salanes and wages
FICA expense
Group insurance
Retirement
401k} account
Purchases for rosale
Reimburse General Fund administrative expenses
Insurance :
Utilities
Cantracted services
Departmental supplies
Professional fees
Cther supplies
Repairs and matntenance, equipment
Postage
Telephone
Repairs and maintenance, buildings
Uniforms
Dues and subscriptions
Equipment rental
Printing
Autemctive supplies
Employee training
Travel
Advertising
Repairs and meintenancge, vehicles

Total Operations 1,387,072

10

Actual

Schedule 3
Page 2 of 4

Varlance
QOver
{Under}

1,195
117,820
72,540
16,658
1,200

1,589
33

457
4,237
514
448
1,230
425
501
210

272,218

158,414
11,379
43,701

7,830
4,803

665,002

123,758
33,333
38,139

7,562
39,998
27,726

4,913
13,135

2,209

4,275

176,198

3,445

1,456

1,281

1,641

4,293

600
1,599
1,024

' 1,169

1,328,873

728,667

58,159

r——




Town of Nags Head, North Carclina
Water Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

Budget and Actual {Non-GAAP) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Fresh Pond Operations:

Salarfes and wages

EICA expense

Group Insurance

Retirernent

401(Kk} account

Reimburse General Fund administrative expenses
Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Cther supplies and materials
Insurance

Contracted services

Profassional services

Departmental supplies

Lilities

Repairs and malntenance, building
Telephone

Employes training

Travel

Printing

Postage

Tatal Fresh Fand Operati_oﬁs

Operations Distribution;
Salaries and wages
FICA expense

Group insurance
Retirement;

401(k} account

Reimburse Generai Fund administrative expenses

Contracted services

Cther supplies

Repairs and maintenance, other
Insurance

Automobite supplies

Bepartmental supphies

Uniforms

Repalrs and maintenance, vehicles
Telephone

Dues and subscriptions
Advertising

Repairs and maintenance, equipment
Travel

Employee training

Professional fees
Buildingfequipment rental

Total Operations Distribution

Budget Actual

Schedule 3
Page 3 of 4

Varlance
Qver
(Under)

71

18,076
1,298
4,574

893
548

88,958

38,257

44,658
6,151
3,825

13,080

12,248
4284

303
92
50

196

290

194

252,574 237,965

209,794
14,521
59,247
10,098

6,195
127,964
878
20,214
42,797
4,885
8,590
5,086
3,580
1,797
1,533
742
1,118
4,300
1,259
430
275
477

590,347 525,830

15,005

64,517




Schedule 3

Change in Net Assets

72

Page dof 4
Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Water Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual {(Non-GAAP) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
Variance
Ower
Budget Actual {Under)
Budgetary Appropriations: :
Appropriated Retained Earnings (1,736,345)
Debt issued - (21,868) {21,868)
Interest 49,644 49,644
Debt principa 226,220 224,857
Septic Health Loans 15,000 B,225
Principal repayments Septic Health Loans (20,000 (16,670}
Increase (decreasa) in:
Thventory (246)
{Increase) decrease in;
Compensated absences {1,9923
Capital outlay: )
Buildings and improvements -
Machinery and eguipment 59,791 44,194
Other 1,231,646 1,231,645
Contingency 9,500
- Capital Improvements Flan 586 -
Total Budgetary Apprapriations {185,826 1,517,751 (1,703,617)
Total Expenditures 2,727,863 4,029,215 {1,301,346)
Revenues Over Expenditures - {1,038,645) 1,038,645
RECONCILTATION OF MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS
Revenues aver expenditures - {1,038,645) (1,325,64%)
Reronciling items: '
Septic Heaith Loans 8,225
Principal repayments Septic Health Loans {16,670)
Cebt issued (21,868}
Fayment of debt principal 224,857
Decrease in inventory (246)
Capital outlay 1,275,841
Depreciation and amortization (268,809}
Increase in accrued vacation and comp pay {1,992 .
Decrease in prepaid impact fees 32,000
Capital contributions 43,395
Income Before Capital Contributions $ 235,088




Town of Nags Head, North Carolina

Storm Water Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual {Non-GAAP) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Budget
REVENUES
Storm Water Fees
Storm Water Grant
Total Revenues 139,560
EXPEMDITURES
Postage
Advertising
- Department Supplies
Professional Fees
Contracted Services
Total Expenditures 285,960
OTHER. FINANCING SOURCES
Interest earned on investrments -
Transfer from General Fund _ 100,000
100,000

Appropriated retained earnings 46,400
Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Over {Under) Expenditures $ -

RECONCILIATION CF MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS

Revenues over (under) expenditures
Contributions ta Water Fund

Sala of Fixed Assets

Depreciation

(Loss) Before Operating Transfers

73

Actual

$ 110,796

110,756

1,523

431
2,497
8,708

87,554
100,713
-4,592

100,000

104,592

$ 114,675

114,675

$ 114,675

Schedule 4

Variance
Owver

(Under)

(28,764)

185,247

———

4,592

. 4,582

- (46,400)

$ 114,675




Schedule 5

Town of Nags Head, North Carolina
Nags Head Leasing
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Variance
Over
Budget Actual {Under)

REVENLIES
Other revenues - - - - -

EXPENDITURES
Other expenditures - - - ——

Total Expenditures - - -

OTHER: FINANCING SQURCES
Interest earned on investments - 12 12
Sale of Fixed Assets - - -

- 12 12

Appropriated retained earnings - - -
Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Over (Under) Expenditures $ - $ 12 $ 12

RECONCILIATION OF MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS

TO FULL ACCRUAL BASIS

Revenues over {under) expenditures 12
Contributions to Water Fund -
Sale of Fixed Assets -
Depreciation -

(Loss} Before Operating Transfers $ 12

4




Schedule 6

TOWN OF NAGS HEAD, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Recejvable
June 30, 2006

Uncoilected Collection Uncollected
Balance And Balance

Fiscal Year June 30, 2005 Additions _Lredits Adjustments Aune 30, 2006
2005-2006 L1 - % 4,218,840 $ 4,430,887 [ 113,195 ] 1,148
2004-2005 1,639 - {1,555) {233) Z,961
2003-2004 3,515 - 519 - 2,906
2002-2003 1,786 - 113 - 1,673
2001-2002 2,318 - 140 - 2,178
2000-2001 2,389 - 445 - 1,940
1399-2000 3,982 - 1,229 - 2,753
1598-1999 1,702 - 4 - 1,608
-1997-1998 1,539 - 11 - 1,528
1996-1997 1,340 - 234 - 1,106
1995-1996 1,627 - 1,627 - -
1994-199% 10 - 10 - : -
1593-1999 g - 9 - -

3 21,856 ¢ 4,318,840 4 4,433,677 4 112,962 19,981

Less aliowance for upcollectible
ad valorem taxes receivable ' : , 10,000

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable, net % 3 981

Reconcilement with revenues:

Taxes, ad valorem , General Fund $ 4,990,726
Amounts written off for tax year 93-94 912
DMV written off 871
Amounts written off <$1 1
Refunds paid on taxes -
Less penaities and interest {8,833}

§ 4433677
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Martin Starnes &7 Associates, CIPAs, BA.,

A Professionsd Associed fon of Certified Public Accenuitants and Meairagemient £ narsnfte s

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
In Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Commissiouners
Town of Nags Head
Nags Head, North Carolina

We have audited the basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Town of Nags Head, North
Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2006 , avd have issued our report thereon dated August
16, 2006. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepied in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States

Internal Conirol Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Town of Nags Head’s internal control over
finaneial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements and not te provide assurance on the internal control over fimancial
reporting. Qur censideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily
disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporiing that might be material weaknesses. A
material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation o[ one or more of the
internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused
by error or frand in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited
may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and
its operaticn that we consider to be material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Town of Nags Head’s {inancial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reporied uader Government Auditing Standards.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use ef the Board of Commissioners, members of
management, others within the organization, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through
entities and is not mtended to be and should net be used by anvone other than these specified parties.

L] L]
Wit Hprinast £ Coomreintio, CP2s, P4,
Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A.
August 16, 2006
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